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The laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the United States. We may encounter
significant problems in protecting and defending our intellectual property both in the United States and abroad. Further, governments may in the future alter intellectual
property rights in a manner adverse to us or to our third- party collaborators, including actions taken at the international level. For example, in June 2022 member
countries of the World Trade Organization (“ WTO ”) agreed to implement a multi- jurisdictional five- year waiver of patent protection with respect to vaccines that
target COVID- 19 in an effort to fight the pandemic and allow for a more equal distribution of resources, particularly for developing countries, towards that goal. This
resulted from ongoing discussions among WTO member countries which began in 2020 with a proposal for a more extensive waiver that would have covered patents for
COVID- 19 related diagnostics and therapeutics as well as vaccines. The WTO waiver, together with similar actions that may be taken with respect to COVID- 19-
related products or other products in which we are or may become involved could materially diminish or eliminate our ability to protect the underlying intellectual
property rights we rely on for such products, including those licensed from third parties, and as a result any potential competitive advantage would be lost. If we are
unable to prevent material disclosure of the non- patented intellectual property related to our technologies to third parties, and there is no guarantee we will have any
such enforceable trade secret protection, we may not be able to establish or maintain a competitive advantage in our market, which could materially adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition. If third- party intellectual property infringement claims are asserted against us, it may prevent or delay our
development and commercialization efforts and have a material adverse effect on our business and future prospects. Our commercial success depends in part on our
avoiding infringement on the patents and proprietary rights of third parties. There is substantial litigation, both within and outside the United States, involving patent and
other intellectual property rights in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, including patent infringement lawsuits, interferences, oppositions, and
reexaminations and other post- grant proceedings before the U. S. Patent and Trademark Office, and corresponding foreign patent offices. Numerous U. S. and foreign
issued patents and pending patent applications, which are owned by third parties, exist in the fields in which we and our partners are pursuing product candidates. As the
biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries expand and more patents are issued, the risk increases that our product candidates may be subject to claims of infringement
of the patent rights of third parties. Third parties may assert that we are employing their proprietary technology without authorization. There may be third- party patents
or patent applications with claims to materials, formulations, methods of manufacture or methods for treatment related to the use or manufacture of our product
candidates. Because patent applications can take many years to issue, there may be patent applications currently pending that may later result in patents that our product
candidates may infringe upon. Third parties may obtain patents in the future and claim that use of our technologies infringes on these patents. If any third- party patents
were to be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to cover the manufacturing process of any of our product candidates, any molecules formed during the
manufacturing process or any final product itself, the holders of any such patents may be able to block our ability to commercialize such product candidate unless we
obtained a license under the applicable patents, or until such patents expire. Similarly, if any third- party patents were to be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
cover aspects of our formulations, processes for manufacture or methods of use, including combination therapy, the holders of any such patents may be able to block our
ability to develop and commercialize the applicable product candidate unless we obtained a license or until such patent expires. In either case, such a license may not be
available on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Parties making intellectual property claims against us may obtain injunctive or other equitable relief, which could
block our ability to further develop and commercialize one or more of our product candidates. Defense of these claims, regardless of their merit, involves substantial
litigation expense and diversion of our management’ s attention from our business. If a claim of infringement against us succeeds, we may have to pay substantial
damages, possibly including treble damages and attorneys’ fees for willful infringement, pay royalties, redesign our infringing products or obtain one or more licenses
from third parties, which may be impossible or require substantial time and monetary expenditure. Because of the costs involved in defending patent litigation, we may
in the future lack the capital to defend our intellectual property rights. We may in the future be involved in lawsuits to protect or enforce our patents or the patents of our
licensors, which could be expensive, time- consuming and unsuccessful. Competitors may infringe on our patents or the patents of our licensors. To counter such
infringement or unauthorized use, we may be required to file infringement claims, or we may be required to defend the validity or enforceability of such patents, which
can be expensive and time- consuming. In an infringement proceeding, a court may decide that either one or more of our patents or our licensors’ patents is not valid or
is unenforceable or may refuse to stop the other party from using the technology at issue because our patents do not cover that technology. An adverse result in any
litigation or defense proceedings could put one or more of our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and could put our patent applications at risk of
not being issued. Interference proceedings provoked by third parties or brought by us may be necessary to determine the priority of inventions regarding our patents or
patent applications or those of our partners or licensors. An unfavorable outcome could require us to cease using the related technology or to license rights to it from the
prevailing party. Our business could be harmed if the prevailing party does not offer us a license on commercially reasonable terms. Our defense of litigation or
interference proceedings may fail and, even if successful, may cause us to incur substantial costs and distract the attention of our management and other employees. We
may not be able to prevent, alone or with our licensors, misappropriation of our intellectual property rights, particularly in countries where the laws may not protect
those rights as fully as in the United States. Because of the substantial amount of discovery required in intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of our
confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation. There could also be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions
or other interim proceedings or developments. If securities analysts or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could have a material adverse effect on the price
of our common stock. We may need to obtain additional licenses to intellectual property rights from third parties. We may need to obtain additional licenses from third
parties to advance our research or allow commercialization of our product candidates. We may fail to obtain these licenses at a reasonable cost or on reasonable terms, if
at all. In that event, we would be unable to further develop and commercialize one or more of our product candidates, which could harm our business significantly. We
cannot provide any assurances that third- party patents do not exist that might be enforced against our products, resulting in either an injunction prohibiting our sales, or,
with respect to our sales and other activities, an obligation on our part to pay royalties and / or other forms of compensation to third parties The licensing and acquisition
of third- party intellectual property rights is a competitive practice, and companies that may be more established, or have greater resources than we do, may also be
pursuing strategies to license or acquire third- party intellectual property rights that we may consider necessary or attractive in order to develop and commercialize our
product candidates. More established companies may have a competitive advantage over us due to their larger size and cash resources or greater clinical development
and commercialization capabilities. We may not be able to successfully complete such negotiations and ultimately acquire the rights to the intellectual property
surrounding product candidates that we may seek to acquire, in which case our business could be harmed. We may be subject to claims that our employees, consultants
or independent contractors have wrongfully used or disclosed confidential information of third parties. We employ individuals previously employed at other
biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies. We may be subject to claims asserting that we or our employees, consultants or independent contractors have inadvertently
or otherwise used or disclosed confidential information of our employees’ former employers or other third parties. We may also be subject to claims that former
employers or other third parties have an ownership interest in our patents. Litigation may be necessary to defend against these claims. There is no guarantee of success in
defending these claims, and if we succeed, litigation could cause substantial cost and be a distraction to our management and other employees. Because we face
significant competition from other biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies, our operating results will suffer if we fail to compete effectively. The biotechnology
and pharmaceutical industries are intensely competitive. See “ Business- Competition ” at page +8-9 for a description of the competitive environment we face. We have
competitors both in the United States and internationally, including major multinational pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology companies and universities and other
research institutions. Our competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and other resources, such as larger research and development staff and experienced
marketing and manufacturing organizations. This enables them, among other things, to make greater research and development investments and efficiently utilize their
research and development costs. Additional mergers and acquisitions in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries may cause even more resources being
concentrated in our competitors. Additionally, smaller or early- stage companies of which we may not be aware could also prove to be material competitors, particularly
through collaborative arrangements with larger, more well- established companies or by competing with us for limited resources and strategic alliances with our current
or prospective partners. Competition may increase further because of advances in the commercial applicability of technologies and greater availability of capital for
investment in these industries. Our competitors may develop, acquire or license drug products that are more effective or less costly than any product candidate we may
develop. The programs we are focusing on are in a preclinical €-or early clinical development stage and are targeted toward indications for which there are approved
products on the market or product candidates in clinical development. We will face competition from other drugs that are or will be approved for the same therapeutic
indications. Our ability to compete successfully will depend largely on our ability to leverage our experience in drug discovery and development to: e discover and
develop therapeutics superior to other products in the market; ® attract and retain qualified scientific, product development and commercial personnel; ® obtain patent
and / or other proprietary protection for our technology platform and product candidates; ® obtain required regulatory approvals; and e successfully collaborate with
pharmaceutical companies in the discovery, development and commercialization of new therapeutics. The availability of our competitors” products could limit the



. We will not dthCVC our busmess pldn if the acceptance of our products is inhibited by price competition or the
reluctance of physicians to switch from existing drug products to our products, or if physicians switch to other new drug products or reserve our products for use in
limited circumstances. Additionally, the biopharmaceutical industry is characterized by rapid technological and scientific change, and we may not be able to adapt to
these rapid changes to the extent necessary to keep up with competitors or at all. The inability to compete with existing or subsequently introduced drug products would
have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and prospects. Established pharmaceutical companies may invest heavily to accelerate discovery and
development of novel compounds or to in- license novel compounds that could make our product candidates less competitive. Any new product that competes with an
approved product must typically demonstrate advantages, such as in efficacy, convenience, tolerability or safety, to overcome price competition and to succeed. Our
competitors may obtain patent protection, receive approval by FDA and / or foreign regulatory authorities or discover, develop and commercialize product candidates
before we do, which would have a material adverse impact on our business. Our business could be negatively impacted by cybersecurity threats and other security
threats and disruptions. Because our business relies on proprietary technology and computer systems, we face certain security threats, including threats to our
information technology infrastructure, attempts to gain access to our proprietary or confidential information, threats to physical security, and domestic terrorism events.
Our information technology networks and related systems are critical to the operation of our business and our research and development efforts. We are also involved
with information technology systems for certain third parties, which generally face similar security threats. Cybersecurity threats in particular, are persistent, evolve
quickly and include, but are not limited to, computer viruses, attempts to access information, denial of service and other electronic security breaches believe that we have
implemented appropriate measures and controls and invested in skilled information technology resources to appropriately identify threats and mitigate potential risks,
but there can be no assurance that such actions will be sufficient to prevent disruptions to critical systems, the unauthorized release of confidential information or
corruption of data. A security breach or other significant disruption involving these types of information and information technology networks and related systems
could: e disrupt the proper functioning of these networks and systems and therefore its operations and / or those of third parties on which we rely; ® result in the
unauthorized access to, and destruction, loss, theft, misappropriation or release of, our proprietary, confidential, sensitive or otherwise valuable information, or that of
third parties with which we collaborate or otherwise depend, which others could use to compete against us or for disruptive, destructive or otherwise harmful purposes
and outcomes; @ delay or compromise preclinical or clinical studies or the analysis and use of data collected in our efforts to develop product candidates; ® require
significant attention and resources of management and key personnel to remedy any damages or other adverse consequences that result; ® subject us to claims for breach
of contract, damages, credits, penalties or termination with respect to our relationships with third parties, or regulatory actions by governmental agencies; and @ damage
our reputation with industry participants, existing or prospective strategic alliances, and the public generally. Any or all of the foregoing could have a material negative
impact on its business, financial condition and prospects. Failure of our information technology infrastructure to operate effectively could adversely affect our business.
We depend on information technology infrastructure to pursue our business objectives and development efforts with respect to our product candidates. If a problem
occurs that impairs this infrastructure, including as a result of an outage or malfunctioning of the hardware and software comprising or contributing to the information
technology, the resulting disruption could impede our ability to proceed with research objectives in a timely manner, or otherwise carry on business in the normal
course. Any such events could cause us to lose opportunities or progress with respect to product candidates or strategic alliances, and could require us to incur significant
expense to remediate. Artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that can negatively impact our business. Artificial intelligence- based platforms and tools are
increasingly being used in the biopharmaceutical, pharmaceutical, and consumer health industries. As with many technological innovations, artificial intelligence
presents risks and challenges that could impact our business. While our current use of artificial intelligence- based platforms or tools in our business is relatively
minimal, many of our competitors have begun utilizing artificial intelligence tools to aid in the development of pharmaceutical products. Our decision to not implement
artificial intelligence platforms or tools may put us at a competitive disadvantage in comparison to competitors who currently use artificial intelligence platforms and
tools in the development of pharmaceutical products. As artificial intelligence expands, our competitors, which may have significantly greater financial and human
capital resources, may use artificial intelligence to further their research efforts and advance competitive product candidates through clinical trials. In the future, we may
adopt and integrate artificial intelligence platforms and / or tools into our business. Further, any third- party collaborators may incorporate artificial intelligence
platforms and tools into their business without disclosing this to us, and the providers of these artificial intelligence platforms and tools may not meet existing or rapidly
evolving regulatory or industry standards with respect to privacy and data protection. If our third- party collaborators who use artificial intelligence platforms or tools
experience an actual or perceived breach related incident because of the use of artificial intelligence, we may lose valuable intellectual property, confidential
information, and suffer reputational damage. Further, bad actors around the world use increasingly sophisticated methods, including the use of artificial intelligence, to
engage in illegal activities involving the theft and misuse of personal information, confidential information, and intellectual property. Any of these outcomes could
damage our reputation, result in the loss of valuable property and information, and adversely impact our business. The commercial success of our product candidates
will depend upon the acceptance of these product candidates by the medical community, including physicians, patients and healthcare payors. Assuming one or more
product candidates achieve regulatory approval and we commence marketing such products, the market acceptance of any product candidates will depend on several
factors, including: ® demonstration of clinical safety and efficacy compared to other products; e the relative convenience, ease of administration and acceptance by
physicians, patients and healthcare payors; e the prevalence and severity of any adverse effects or serious adverse effects; ® limitations or warnings in the label
approved by FDA and / or foreign regulatory authorities for such products; e the timing of market introduction of our products relative to competitive products and the
availability of alternative treatments; ® pricing and cost- effectiveness; ® the execution and effectiveness of our or any partners’ sales and marketing strategies; ® our
ability to obtain hospital formulary approval; and e our ability to obtain and maintain sufficient third- party payor coverage or reimbursement. If we obtain regulatory
approval for one product candidate, we expect sales to generate substantially all of our product revenues, and as such, the failure of such product to find market
acceptance would adversely affect our results of operations. If insurance and / or government coverage and adequate reimbursement are not available for our product
candidates, it could impair our ability to achieve and maintain profitability. Market acceptance and sales of any product candidates we develop will depend on coverage
and reimbursement policies of third- party payors. Government authorities and third- party payors, such as private health insurers, hospitals and health maintenance
organizations, decide which drugs they will pay for and establish reimbursement levels. Coverage and adequate reimbursement may not be available for some or all of
our product candidates. As patients generally rely on third- party payors to reimburse all or part of the costs associated with their treatment, inadequate reimbursement
amounts may reduce the demand for, or the price of, our future products. Thus, the availability of adequate coverage and reimbursement from governmental healthcare
programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, and commercial payors is critical to new product acceptance. As the Trump Administration continues to pursue various
means of de- regulation and reduced government spending, funding for these types of programs may become less available to market participants and
consumers, which would reduce a prospective market for the products we are seeking to develop. Obtaining coverage and reimbursement approval of a product
from a government or other third- party payor is a time- consuming and costly process, and no uniform policy of coverage and reimbursement for products exists among
third- party payors in the United States. A primary trend in the U. S. healthcare industry is cost containment. Third- party payors have attempted to control costs by
limiting coverage and the amount of reimbursement for particular products. Further, third- party payors are increasingly challenging prices charged for pharmaceutical
products, and many third- party payors may refuse to provide coverage and reimbursement for particular drugs when an equivalent generic drug or a less expensive
therapy is available. There can be no assurance that coverage and reimbursement will be available for any product we commercialize. Even if we obtain coverage for a
given product, the resulting reimbursement payment rates might not be adequate for us to achieve or sustain profitability or may require co- payments that patients find
unacceptable. If reimbursement is not available, or is available at limited levels, we may not be able to successfully commercialize product candidates we develop. Due
to the recent change in presidential administration in the U. S. United-States-presideney-and-upeoming-eleetion-, we and our industry face uncertainty including the
potential for inereasedregutationreduced government funding of research programs and staff and resource reductions at the FDA and other government
agencies , which may adversely affect our business. Since taking office in January 2025, President Biden-Trump and his cabinet have expressed an intention of
and undertaken efforts to reduce the size and spending of the federal government. As part of this initiative, President Trump established the Department of
Government Efﬁclency (“DOGE ”), which is tasked with reducing government spending and increasing efficiency of the federal government and its
component agencnes. Slnce its establlshment, DOGE has taken action aimed at reducing the workforce of the federal government expressed-a-desire-to-make

3 o aws-and werking-with-eliminating other expenditures, such as facility leases, used by the federal government
and its component agencles. Whlle these and other actions taken by the Trump Administration could be viewed as a part of a larger goal of de- regulation, a
consequence of these developments and other actions taken by DOGE or the Trump Administration generally could be reduced resources, employees and
contractors at the FDA and other federal agencies on in-a-manner-which may-our operations depend or through which regulatory approvals are or will be
required for us and our product candidates and programs. For example, less staff and resources at the FDA could result in the approval process for clinical
trials or product candidates having a longer duration or being more costly to expedite. Additionally, government funding for research and development
programs such as those we are pursuing could be significantly reduced, which could have the effect of limiting or eliminating our ability to access the capital




needed to fund our programs. Any of these or other outcomes of Pre51dent Trump s term and government action generally, whlch remain uncertam, could
materlally adv gm.ly affect ® g . .

fet&d—te—be—pﬁeed—stgm—ﬁeaﬁ{-l-y—l-eweﬁ If we are umhle to eslabllsh sales and m'lrkelmo Lapdbl]llle% or enter into agreements mlh lhud p'nlles to m'nkel and sell our
product candidates, we may be unable to generate any revenues from product sales. We do not have a team with experience in the sales, marketing and distribution of
pharmaceutical products and the cost of establishing and maintaining such an organization may exceed the cost- effectiveness of doing so. To market any products that
may be approved, we must build our sales, marketing, managerial and other non- technical capabilities or arrange with third parties to provide these services. Our
current and future partners may not dedicate sufficient resources to the commercialization of our product candidates or may otherwise fail in their commercialization
efforts due to factors beyond our control. If we are unable to establish effective alliances to enable the sale of our product candidates to healthcare professionals and in
geographical regions, including the United States, that will not be covered by our own marketing and sales force, or if our potential future strategic partners do not
successfully commercialize the product candidates, our ability to generate revenues from product sales will be adversely affected. If we are unable to establish adequate
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities, whether independently or with third parties, we may not be able to generate sufficient product revenue and may not
become profitable. We will be competing with many companies that have extensive and well- funded marketing and sales operations. Without an internal team or the
support of a third- party to perform marketing and sales functions, we may be unable to compete successfully against these more established companies. If we obtain
approval to commercialize any approved products outside of the United States, a variety of risks associated with international operations could materially adversely
affect our business. If any of our product candidates are approved for commercialization, we may enter into agreements with third parties to market them on a worldwide
basis or in more limited geographical regions. We expect we will be subject to additional risks related to entering into international business relationships, including: ®
different regulatory requirements for drug approvals in foreign countries; ® reduced protection for intellectual property rights; ® unexpected changes in tariffs, trade
barriers and regulatory requirements; ® economic weakness, including inflation, or political instability in foreign economies and markets; ® compliance with tax,
employment, immigration and labor laws for employees living or traveling abroad; e foreign taxes, including withholding of payroll taxes; ® foreign currency
fluctuations, which could cause increased operating expenses and reduced revenues, and other obligations incident to doing business in another country; ® workforce
uncertainty in countries where labor unrest is endemic; ® the impact of any war or hostilities such as the Russian invasion of Ukraine; ® production shortages resulting
from any events affecting raw material supply or manufacturing capabilities abroad; and e business interruptions resulting from geopolitical actions, including war and
terrorism, or natural disasters including earthquakes, typhoons, floods and fires. If we lose key management or scientific personnel, cannot recruit qualified employees,
directors, officers, or other personnel or experience increases in our compensation costs, our business may materially suffer. We depend on principal members of our
executive and research teams; the loss of whose services may adversely impact the achievement of our objectives. We are highly dependent on our President and Co-
Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Sam Lee and our Chief Financial Officer and Co- Chief Executive Officer, James Martin . Dr. Lee also actively manages our research
and development and clinical trial programs . We may be unable to locate a new Chief Executive Officer capable of running our company effectively, and any such
individual will require high compensation in a competitive market for experienced and qualified personnel within our industry. We do not carry “ key- man ” life
insurance on any of our employees or advisors. Furthermore, our future success will also depend in part on the continued service of our key scientific and management
personnel and our ability to identify, hire, and retain additional personnel. We may not be able to attract and retain personnel on acceptable terms, as there is significant
competition among numerous pharmaceutical companies for individuals with similar skill sets. Because of this competition, our compensation costs may increase
significantly. If we lose key employees, our business may suffer. If we expand our organization, we may experience difficulties in managing growth, which could
disrupt our operations. As of March 28-14 , 2624-2025 , we have +2-11 full- time employees. As our Company matures, we expect to expand our employee base to
increase our managerial, scientific and operational, commercial, financial and other resources and to hire more consultants and contractors. Future growth would impose
significant additional responsibilities on our management, including the need to identify, recruit, maintain, motivate and integrate additional employees, consultants and
contractors. Also, our management may need to divert a disproportionate amount of its attention away from our day- to- day activities and to manage these growth
activities. We may not be able to effectively manage the expansion of our operations, which may cause weaknesses in our infrastructure, and give rise to operational
mistakes, loss of business opportunities, loss of employees and reduced productivity among remaining employees. Our expected growth could require significant capital
expenditures and may divert financial resources from other projects, such as developing additional product candidates. If our management cannot effectively manage our
growth, our expenses may increase more than expected, our ability to generate and / or grow revenues could be reduced, and we may not be able to implement our
business strategy. Our future financial performance and our ability to commercialize product candidates and compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability to
manage our future growth. Any relationships with customers and third- party payors may be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal and state healthcare fraud and abuse
laws, false claims laws and health information privacy and security laws. If we are unable to comply, or have not fully complied, with such laws, we could face criminal




sanctions, civil penalties, contractual damages, reputational harm and diminished profits and future earnings. If we obtain FDA approval for any of our product
candidates and commercialize those products in the United States, our operations may be directly, or indirectly through our customers, subject to various federal and
state fraud and abuse laws, including, without limitation, the federal Anti- Kickback Statute and the federal False Claims Act. These laws may impact, among other
things, our proposed sales, marketing and education programs. We may be subject to patient privacy regulation by the federal government and by the U. S. states and
foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct our business. The laws that may affect our ability to operate include: ® the federal Anti- Kickback Statute, which prohibits,
among other things, persons from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or paying remuneration, directly or indirectly, to induce, or in return for, either
the referral of an individual, or the purchase or recommendation of an item or service for which payment may be made under a federal healthcare program, such as the
Medicare and Medicaid programs; e federal civil and criminal false claims laws and civil monetary penalty laws, which prohibit, among other things, individuals or
entities from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Medicaid, or other third- party payers that are false or fraudulent; ®
the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which created new federal criminal statutes that prohibit executing a scheme to
defraud any healthcare benefit program and making false statements relating to healthcare matters; @ HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Technology and
Clinical Health Act of 2009, or HITECH, and its implementing regulations, which imposes certain requirements relating to the privacy, security and transmission of
individually identifiable health information; and e state and foreign law equivalents of each of the above federal laws, such as anti- kickback and false claims laws which
may apply to items or services reimbursed by any third- party payer, including commercial insurers, and state and foreign laws governing the privacy and security of
health information in certain circumstances, many of which differ from each other in significant ways and may not have the same effect, thus complicating compliance
efforts. If our operations are found to violate any of the laws described above or any other governmental regulations that apply to us, we may be subject to penalties,
including, without limitation, civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines, possible exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid and other government healthcare programs, and
curtailment or restructuring of our operations, which could adversely affect our ability to operate our business and our results of operations. Because we face potential
product liability if claims are brought against us, we may incur substantial liability and costs. Using our product candidates in clinical trials and the sale of any products
for which we obtain marketing approval exposes us to the risk of product liability claims. Product liability claims might be brought against us by consumers, healthcare
providers, pharmaceutical companies or others selling or otherwise coming into contact with our products. If we cannot successfully defend against product liability
claims, we could incur substantial liability and costs. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, product liability claims may cause: ® impairment of our business
reputation; @ withdrawal of clinical trial participants; ® costs due to related litigation; e distraction of management’ s attention from our primary business; ® substantial
monetary awards to patients or other claimants; ® regulatory scrutiny and product recalls, withdrawals or labeling, marketing or promotional restrictions; ® the inability
to commercialize our product candidates; and e decreased demand for our product candidates, if approved for commercial sale. Insurance coverage is becoming
increasingly expensive and we may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against losses due to liability. If
and when we obtain marketing approval for product candidates, we intend to expand our insurance coverage to include the sale of commercial products; however, we
may be unable to obtain product liability insurance on commercially reasonable terms or in adequate amounts. Occasionally, large judgments have been awarded in class
action lawsuits based on drugs that had unanticipated adverse effects. A successful product liability claim or series of claims brought against us could cause our stock
price to decline and, if judgments exceed our insurance coverage, could adversely affect our results of operations and business. Business interruptions resulting from
pandemics, natural disasters and adverse weather events could cause delays in research and development of our product candidates. Our principal offices are in Bothell,
Washington where we conduct our §c1cnt1ﬁc research. We 1190 maintain a small finance and accountmg ofﬁcc in Mnml Florida and an admmmtrmvc office i in
Austmlla In addmon we ourtn : 2
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CROs for our coronaviruses and NOrovirus programs , and our Inﬂuenza A program w1|l continue to depend on one or more CROs in the United Kingdom for its
Phase 2a study for the furtherance of our research and development efforts as to that product . We and third parties on which we rely are vulnerable to natural
disasters such as earthquakes, tornados, severe storms, hurricanes, tsunamis, and fires, as well as other events that could disrupt our operations and cause delays in
research and development of our product candidates. We do not carry insurance for natural disasters or similar events, and we may not carry sufficient business
interruption insurance to compensate us for losses that may occur. Any losses or damages we incur could have a material adverse effect on our operations. If our
information technology systems are compromised, the information we store and process, including our intellectual property, could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost
or stolen, which could harm our business, relationships with strategic partners and future results of operations. Companies are increasingly suffering damage from
attacks by hackers and there is a general risk that adversaries in geopolitical conflicts such as those taking place in Ukraine and in the Middle East adopt widespread
Internet hacking as a weapon, which hacking may ultimately affect us. In the ordinary course of business, we store sensitive information, such as our intellectual
property, including trade secrets and results of our clinical and preclinical research, and that of our suppliers and business partners, on a central server, and such
information is transmitted via email correspondence. The secure maintenance and processing of this information is critical to our research and development activities
and future operations. Despite our security measures, our information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or breaches due to employee
error, malfeasance or other disruptions. Any such breach could compromise our information technology systems and the information stored there could be accessed by
third parties, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such unauthorized access, disclosure, misappropriation or other loss of information could result in disruption of our
operations, including our existing and future research collaborations, and damage our reputation, which in its turn could harm our business and future results of
operations. If we fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, we could become subject to fines
or penalties or incur costs that could have a material adverse effect on our business. We are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations,
including those governing laboratory procedures and the handling, use, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes, and the treatment of animals
used in research. Our operations involve using hazardous and flammable materials, including chemicals and biological materials. Our operations also produce hazardous
waste products. We generally contract with third parties for the disposal of these materials and wastes. We cannot eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from
these materials. If contamination occurs or injury results from our use of hazardous materials, we could be held liable for any resulting damages, and any liability could
exceed our resources. We also could incur significant costs associated with civil or criminal fines and penalties. The federal Occupational Safety and Health
Administration has established extensive requirements relating to workplace safety for health care employers, including clinical laboratories, whose workers may be
exposed to blood- borne pathogens such as the hepatitis C virus. These requirements, among other things, require work practice controls, protective clothing and
equipment, training, medical follow- up, vaccinations and other measures designed to minimize exposure to, and transmission of, blood- borne pathogens. In addition,
the Needlestick Safety and Prevention Act requires, among other things, that we include in our safety programs the evaluation and use of engineering controls such as
safety needles if found to be effective at reducing the risk of needlestick injuries in the workplace. Although our workers’ compensation insurance may cover us for
costs and expenses, we may incur additional costs due to injuries to our employees resulting from the use of hazardous materials or other work- related injuries, and this
insurance may not provide adequate coverage against other potential liabilities. We may incur substantial costs to comply with current or future environmental, health
and safety laws and regulations. These current or future laws and regulations may 1mpd1r our resedrch development or productlon eh‘orts Fcnlure to Comply Wlth these
laws and rcgulanom also may cause substantial ﬁncs pcnalncs or othcr sanctions. Hwe-fa 0 ) a ¢ tt

TO OUR COMMON STOCK Our thLk price dnd tradmg volume hdb hlbtoneally been voldtlle dnd any increases in these metrics may be temporary for a number of
reasons, which may cause investors to lose money. Our stock price and trading volume is volatile, and the limited periods in which there were increases to our stock
price and trading volume have hlstomally been temporary in nature. Therefore there can be no assurance that our stock prlce or tradmg volume w1l1 increase in the




ur common stoek may continue to be volatile and could mdterlallv fd” for a number of reasons meludmgj ° Announecments by the
FDA of final approval ofvaccmcs and treatments for COVID—9-and-ether-disecases we target; ® Announcements relating to the spread of new variants of €OVIBD—19
and-ether-diseases we target; ® Announcements by competitors that they are initiating human trials of drugs to treat the diseases we target; ® Events which demonstrate
that the spread or intensity of €OVHD—9-er-ether-discases has receded; ® Our disclosure that the use of our technology and the patents we licensed do not appear
promlsmu for the treatment 01‘ this virus; @ The results 01L or developments with respect to our ehmcal trials; ® Our announcement wmemmg lhe initiation of or de]ay

W R ~or ® The occurrence of a qny other events or
faetors which may have created the unusual \Oldtlllty and spike in volume. If the current price is reduced, investors may sustain large losses. Due to factors beyond our
control, our common stock price may be volatile, or may decline regardless of our operating performance, and you may not be able to resell your shares. The market
price of our common stock will depend on a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control and may not be related to our operating performance. These
fluctuations could cause you to lose all or part of your investment in our common stock since you might be unable to sell your shares at or above the price you paid.
Factors that could cause fluctuations in the market price of our common stock include the following: @ price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from
time- to- time; ® due to external factors such as geopolitical turmoil, a possible recession, inflation or other events, including the conflicts in Ukraine and Israel or other
unknown hostilities, investors may sell our common stock to meet margin calls on other stocks or as the result of economic disruptions; e volatility in the market prices
and trading volumes of biotechnology stocks generally, or those in our peer group in particular; ® changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of other
biotechnology companies generally, or those in our industry in particular; e sales of shares of our stock by us or our stockholders; ® the failure of securities analysts to
maintain coverage of us, changes in financial estimates by securities analysts who follow our company or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of
investors; ® Announcement of a future reverse split or our failure to obtain stockholder approval for a reverse split; ® announcements by us or our competitors of new
novel medicines; @ the public’ s reaction to our earnings releases, other public announcements and filings with the SEC; ® rumors and market speculation involving us
or other companies in our industry; @ actual or anticipated developments in our business, our competitors’ businesses or the competitive landscape generally; ® actual or
anticipated changes in our operating results or fluctuations in our operating results; ® developments or disputes concerning our intellectual property or other proprietary
rights; @ new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our business; ® Lhan&es in accounting stdnddtds polleles,
guidelines, interpretations or plmuplcs and e any significant change in our management +#& a ve-g ARy
signifieantmarkets— In addition, in the past, following periods of volatility in the overall market and the mdrket price of a particular company’ s securities, securities
class action litigation has often been instituted against these companies. Any litigation, if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our
management’ s attention and resources. Because of geepehitieal-eonfhietss-central bank actions to combat inflation , the imposition and threat of tariffs and
geopolitical conflicts, and other major events, the effect on the capital markets and the economy is uncertain, dnd we may have to deal with a recessionary economy
and economic uncertainty including possible material adverse effects upon our business. Beginning-with-the-Russtan-invasten-of Ukraine-Following President Trump’
s inauguration in January 2025 , certain trends and cvents have began-begun to unfold which appear to be affeet-affecting the global and United States capital
markets and eeenemy-economies , including inereased-the continued high central bank interest rates, the 1mpos1t10n and threat of tanffs, trade wars among
inflation—-- nations —inereases-irthe-priees-of eommoditiessueh-as-ot-and gas-ongoing geopolitical conflicts . targ 6
Russta-and unccnam capital markets with significant declines in leading market indexes —da-in March 2623-2025 ¢ t whi also-added

. The duration of these events and their impact are at best uncertain , and their continuation may result in negative eensegtienee-consequences on lhe
U. S. or global economies. FartherinMareh2023-two-majorPresident Trump recently began imposing tariffs on certain foreign countries with which the U. S.
banks-eoHapsed-engages in trades with frequently . while-including Canada, Mexico and China, and in response ccrtain countries ether-banks-faced-extreme
finanetal-difftenity-and had-jurisdictions have responded by imposing or threatening to seekimmediate-sotrees-ofHqtidity-toremain-open-impose tariffs on U. S.
goods . These developments follow were-widely-eensidered-a-preduet-of-the increase in interest rates that began in 2022 as the Federal Reserve in U. S. and central
banks in other jurisdictions have sought to combat inflation. While in the U. S. inflation has since declined, uneertainty-remains-many economists view additional
increases in inflation as te-the-timing-a likely consequence of tariffs and a trade war, and in addition central banks including the U. S. Federal Reserve reduetng
have been reluctant to reduce interest rates --until further evidence appears that inflation is under control. Rising prices from tariffs could cause and-- an f
increase in inflation. In the meantime, uncertainty in the markets and concerning the state and prospects for the U. S. and global economies and capital
markets in the near term remains and has amplified due to the factors described above. If inflation does not fall low enough and / or the Federal Reserve declines
to reduce interest rates in the near term, or tariffs imposed or threatened by President Trump are counteracted by retaliatory tariffs imposed by other countries
or otherwise adversely impact the economy, the result could be tipping the U. S. economy into a recession. In the wake of these events, the U. S. and global capital
markets have demonstrated substantial volatility in the first quarter of 2025 , as many investors consider economic outlooks to be uncertain —White-and consider the
ea-pﬁa-l—mﬂfkets—haﬁds-mee—reeevered—nsk of a recession and a decline in the marketplace to be increasingly probable or imminent. wltimately-Ultimately the
economy may turn into a recession with uncertain and potentially severe impacts upon the public the-capital markets and us . Among the potential consequences could
be a substantial decline in stock prices including ours, a reduction in demand for securities of public companies (which may be more prevalent for smaller
companies such as us) and more difficulty for us to raise capital we need and accessing capital on favorable terms or at all as a result. These and related
consequences could also impact our vendors which could have negative impacts on us and our research programs . We cannot predict how this will affect our
business, but the impact may be material and adverse. Future issuances of our common @tock or l‘léhtg to pmcha%e our common stock LOLlld cause 1dd1t10ml dllutlon of
the peleemage ownelshlp of our stuekholderx and eou]d cause our stock price to fall. y 623-we-condueted-aprivatesaleo

be sufficient to fund our operations over lhe next 12 monlhs sub]eel to the many uncertainties and mks that may rise such as those described herein, s1gmllcam
additional capital may be needed in the future to continue our planned operations. To the extent we hawve-raised-and-continue to raise additional capital by issuing equity
securities, our stockholders may experience substantial dilution. We may sell common stock, convertible securities or other equity securities in one or more transactions
at prices and in a manner, we determine from time to time. If we sell common stock, convertible securities or other equity securities in more than one transaction,
investors may be materially diluted by subsequent sales. These sales may also result in material dilution to our existing stockholders, and new investors could gain rights
superior to our existing stockholders. Future sales of large amounts of our common stock in the public market or a perception that such sales might occur could cause a
decrease in our stock price. As of March 28, 2024-2025 , out of approximately 10. 2 million shares of common stock outstanding, approximately 6. 8 million are either
free trading or may be sold without volume or manner of sale limitations under Rule 144. The remainder of our shares, because they are held by our officers, directors
and one 5 % stockholder subject to a voting agreement, who we deem affiliates, are subject to additional restrictions as described below. In general, Rule 144 provides
that any person who is not an affiliate of the Company and has not been an affiliate for 90 days, and who has held restricted common stock for at least six months, is
entitled to sell their restricted stock freely, provided that we remain subject to the Exchange Act reporting requirements and stay current in our SEC filings. The shares of
common stock outstanding which are held by affiliates of the Company are subject to additional restrictions. An affiliate may sell the greater of (i) one percent of our
outstanding stock or (ii) as long as our common stock is listed on Nasdaq, the average weekly trading volume over a prior four- week period after a six- month holding
period with the following restrictions: (i) we are current in our filings; (ii) certain manner of sale provisions; and (iii) filing of Form 144. Additionally, as of December
31, 20232024 , we had approximately $58-550 , 000 options and +H-256 , 000 swarrants-RSUS outstanding that, if fully exercised, would result in the issuance of 569
806 , 000 shares of common stock and approximately 2#5— 27 , 000 shares of common stock remain available for future grants under the Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. 2015
Equlty Incentive Plan. Future sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common stock in the public market, or lhe pc1ccp110n lhal those mlw m"ty occur, could cause
the mdrket prlee of our common stock to deelme slgnmeantly even if our busmes' is performing we]l g W y




Our abl]lly to use our nel operalmg loss carry torward% and certam olhel tax altrlbute@ may be limited. Under Secllon 382 ofthe Inlernal
Revenue Code of 1986 if a corporation undergoes an “ ownership change, ” generally defined as a greater than 50 % change (by value) in its equity ownership over a
three- year period, the corporation’ s ability to use its pre- change net operating loss carry forwards (“ NOLs ™), and other pre- change tax attributes (such as research tax
credits) to offset its post- change income may be limited. We believe that, with the RFS Pharma, LLC and Cocrystal Discovery, Inc. mergers and other transactions that
have occurred more than seven years ago, we may have triggered an “ ownership change ” limitation. We may also experience ownership changes in the future because
of subsequent shifts in our stock ownership. If we generate taxable income, our ability to use our pre- change NOLs carry forwards to offset U. S. federal taxable income
may be subject to limitations, which could result in increased future tax liability to us. At the state level, there may be periods during which the use of NOLs is
suspended or otherwise limited, which could accelerate or permanently increase state taxes owed. Because we may not attract the attention of major brokerage firms, it
could have a material impact upon the price of our common stock. It is possible that securities analysts of major brokerage firms will not provide research coverage for
our common stock. The absence of such coverage limits the likelihood that an active market will develop for our common stock. It may also make it more difficult for
us to attract new investors when we acquire additional capital. We may issue preferred stock which could make it more difficult for a third- party to acquire us and
could depress our stock price. In accordance with the provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and the Stockholder Rights Agreement described above, our Board
may issue one or more additional series of preferred stock that have more than one vote per share, so long as the Board obtains the majority approval of the stockholders
who formerly held our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, which is no longer authorized. This could permit our Board to issue preferred stock to investors who
support our management and give effective control of our business to our management. Issuance of preferred stock could block an acquisition resulting in both a drop in
our stock price and a decline in interest of our common stock. This could make it more difficult for stockholders to sell their common stock. This could also cause the
market price of our common stock shares to drop significantly, even if our business is performing well. Our amended and restated Bylaws provide for an exclusive
forum in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware for certain disputes between us and our stockholders, and the exclusive forum in the Delaware federal courts for
the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. Our amended and restated Bylaws provide that unless the
Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if such court does not have subject matter
jurisdiction thereof, the U. S. District Court of Delaware) will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for: (i) any derivative action or
proceeding brought on behalf of the Company (except to the extent that the Exchange Act provides otherwise), (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary
duty owed by any director or officer (or affiliate of any of the foregoing) of the Company to the Company or the Company’ s stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a
claim arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law, the Company’ s Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, or (iv) any other action
asserting a claim arising under, in connection with, and governed by the internal affairs doctrine. The amended and restated Bylaws further provide that unless the
Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States of America located in Delaware will be the exclusive
forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and any person or entity purchasing or
otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in shares of capital stock of the Company will be deemed to have notice of and consented to these provisions. We believe
these provisions may benefit us by providing increased consistency in the application of Delaware law and federal securities laws by chancellors and judges, as
applicable, particularly experienced in resolving corporate disputes, efficient administration of cases on a more expedited schedule relative to other forums and
protection against the burdens of multi- forum litigation. If a court were to find the choice of forum provision that is contained in our amended and restated Bylaws to be
inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition. For example, Section 22 of the Securities Act provides that state and federal courts have concurrent
jurisdiction over claims to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Accordingly, there is
uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such a forum selection provision as written in connection with claims arising under the Securities Act. To date, the
Delaware Supreme Court has upheld the exclusive jurisdiction provisions in certificates of incorporation for claims under the Securities Act. However, two different
federal Court of Appeals reached conflicting decisions with one Court ruling that a forum selection clause was unenforceable as to a derivative claim that was brought
under the Exchange Act. Further, to date no court has ruled on the exclusive venue provision for claims under the Securities Act and the other Court ruling it was
enforceable. Accordingly, if a stockholder files a Securities Act claim or an Exchange Act claim in a federal court and we seek to rely upon the Delaware venues, we
may not be successful. Because the choice of forum provisions in our Bylaws may have the effect of severing certain causes of action between federal and state courts,
stockholders seeking to assert claims against us or any of our current or former directors, officers, other employees, agents, or stockholders, may be discouraged from
bringing such claims due to a possibility of increased litigation expenses arising from litigating multiple related claims in two separate courts. Additionally, a
stockholder could face uncertainty as to which jurisdiction and venue a case will ultimately be heard in, particularly given that variations in facts, circumstances and the
particular provisions at issue often alter the legal analysis and judicial interpretation, which may delay, prevent or impose additional obstacles on the stockholder in such
litigation. The choice of forum provisions may therefore limit a stockholder’ s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for, or otherwise present
obstacles and challenges in connection with, disputes with us or any of our current or former director, officer, other employee, agent, or stockholder. Item 1B.
Unresolved Staff Comments Not applicable. Item 1C. Cybersecurity Like all companies that utilize technology, we are subject to threats of breaches of our technology
systems. To mitigate the threat to our business, we take a comprehensive approach to cybersecurity risk management. Our Board and our management actively oversee
our risk management program, including the management of cybersecurity risks. We have established policies, standards, processes and practices for assessing,
identifying, and managing material risks from cybersecurity threats, including those discussed in our Risk Factors. We have devoted financial and personnel resources to
implement and maintain security measures to meet regulatory requirements and shareholder expectations, and we intend to continue to make investments to maintain the
security of our data and cybersecurity infrastructure. While there can be no guarantee that our policies and procedures will be properly followed in every instance or that
those policies and procedures will be effective, we believe that the Company’ s sustained investment in people and technologies have contributed to a culture of
continuous improvement that has put the Company in a position to protect against potential compromises, and we do not believe that risks from prior cybersecurity
threats have materially affected our business to date. We can provide no assurance that there will not be incidents in the future or that past or future attacks will not
materially affect us, including our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. Item 2. Properties We have operating facilities in Bothell, Washington
and Miami, Florida, as well as an administrative facility in Melbourne, Australia. We lease approximately 15, 400 square feet of office and laboratory space in Bothell,
Washington under a lease agreement expiring in January 2031. We also renewed the existing lcase office space in Miami, Florida under a lease that expires in August
September 2624-2027 . The Company believes that its properties are suitable for their intended purposes and have capacities adequate for current and projected needs
related to the Company’ s programs. Item 3. Legal Proceedings From time to time, the Company is a party to, or otherwise involved in, legal proceedings arising in the
normal course of business. As of the date of this Report, exeept-as-desertbed-belows-the Company is not aware of any pending legal proccedings r-threatered-to which
the Company or any ofpeﬂd-mg—aga-lﬂsi—rt-lts subs1dlar1es isa party whlch if dete]mmed 1dversely, would have a malenal effect on 1ls busmess results of ope] ations,
Ldbh ﬂows or. tmdnual posmon b e Av 1 a
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Securities Market Information Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ COCP ”. As of March 28-31 , 2624-2025 , there were
approximately 434-202 holders of record of our common stock. Dividend Policy We have not declared nor paid any cash dividend on our common stock, and we
currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance the expansion of our business, and we do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The
decision whether to pay cash dividends on our common stock will be made by our board of directors, in their discretion, and will depend on our financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements and other factors that our board of directors considers significant. Our ability to pay cash dividends is governed by applicable
provisions of Delaware law. Unregistered sales of equity securities All unreﬂlsteled salcs ot our eqmty secur mes during the period cov cled by this Annual Report on
Form 10- K h'aw been prcnousl\' Lpongd Item () [Reserved ] Selee S geAre

rfo y-this-ttetm: ltem 7. \/I(mdgement s Discussion and /\nalysls of Financial ( ondition and Results ot
Opermon% The following dliCLlSlen md anal\ sis should be rtad in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this repert-Report .
Company Overview We develop novel medicines for use in the treatment of human viral diseases. Cocrystal has been developing novel technologies and approaches to
create first- in- class and best- in- class antiviral drug candidates since 2008. Our focus is to pursue the development and commercialization of broad- spectrum antiviral
drug candidates that will transform the treatment and prophylaxis of viral diseases in humans. By concentrating our research and development efforts on viral replication
inhibitors, we plan to leverage our infrastructure and expertise in these areas. During our year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the following key aspects of our business
1d» 'lllLCd Pandcmlc md bmﬂonal In[‘luunm A ° ()ur novel oral PB2 mhlbllm CC- 42344 has shown excellent antnlral acmlty 1g1msl mﬂucnm A strains meludm"

he beth-pan nfluenza 3 Ltober 7023 we annoumed retelpl of aulholuallon trom the Umled
ngdom Medlcmcs and Healthcare Ploducts Ru_ulatmy Agcnw (MHRA) to mm‘\tc a Phdsk. 2a human challenge trial with its broad- spectrum, oral PB2 inhibitor CC-
42344 as a potential treatment for pandemic and seasonal influenza A. In December 2023 we announced achievement of first- patient- in for the Phase 2a human
challenge clinical trial. @ In December €hinteal-results-are-expeeted-in-2024 , the Company announced plans to extend enrollment for the oral CDI- 42344 Phase
2a study due to unexpectedly low influenza infection among study participants. Specifically, management determined that an extension of the study is
necessary due to low infectivity rate of the challenge influenza strain used in this study. The Company is currently in continuing discussions with the clinical
research organization to address this study and determine a course forward with respect thereto, including potentially by preparing a protocol amendment for
approval by the United Kingdom MHRA in order to seek to extend enrollment or a resubmission to study and to ensure necessary infection rates among
enrolled study subjects in study . ® Preclinical development is progressing with an inhaled formulation of CC- 42344 as a treatment and prophylaxis for influenza A.
Pandemic and Seasonal Influenza A / B Program e Novel inhibitors effective against both influenza strains A and B have been identified and are in the preclinical stage.
Oral Protease Inhibitor CDI- 988 @ A novel, broad- spectrum pan- viral 3CL protease inhibitor antiviral drug candidate CDI- 988 for clinical development as an oral
treatment for coronaviruses (including SARS- CoV- 2 ) and norovirus. ® Conducting randomized, double- blind, placebo- controlled Phase 1 study of CDI- 988 is
approved by Australia Human Research Ethics Committees (HREC). The study is designed to access the safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetics of CDI- 988. @ In
September 2023-2024 we anneuneed-initiated dosing of the first subjects in the MAD portion of the Phasc | study elinteal-trial-with eral-CDI- 988 and topline Phase
1 study safety and tolerability SAD results and testing of 800 mg for 10 consecutive days were reported in January 2025 indicating favorable safety and
tolerability results. The topline data of the MAD cohorts . including based on an addltlonal cohort w1th a lugher dose of 1200 mg and a shorter treatment
duration of five consecutive days, is expected to be released in the first half of 2025 —in—e 0 h

Replication Inhibitors © We are using our proprietary structure- based drug discovery platform tedmolog} to dlsgo\ er 1epllcat|0n mhlb]t()ls for orall\ admlnlstered
therapeutic and prophylactic treatments for SARS- CoV- 2. Replication inhibitors hold potential to work with protease inhibitors in a combination therapy regimen.
Results of Operations Research and Development Expense Research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation- related costs for our terremployees
dedicated to clinical advancement and research and development activities and for our Scientific Advisory Board members, as well as lab supplies, lab services, and
facilities and equipment costs. Total research and development expenses were $ +5-12 , 469-537 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared with § 42
15 %92—169 000 tor thc ycar cnded I)ecembet 31, 2-(-)2—2—2023 T hc merease—decrease of $ 2, 7—7—7—632 000 was pl imar; |Iy duc to tlmlng ofadﬂva-nemg—eur—r&ﬂuenea

e rpreparation aPhaset-ehinteat-tria . General and Admlmstratl\e Fxperlse Genelal and admlmstrdtne expenses
mclude compenmtlon related costs for our unplc;)\ ees dedleated to %nuﬂ and ﬁdlnmlstlamc activities, legal fees, audit and tax fees, consultants and professional
services, and general corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses were $ 5, 998-341 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared with $ 5,
445—990 OOO fOI the ycal cndcd Decembcr 31 292%—2023 This fﬂefease—decrease ofS 245—649 000 was prlmanly duc topfefessieﬁﬁ-l—fees-ﬁﬂd-l-m-g&t-mﬂ—}n-t-he

s )F msurance cost and June36;
______ he-market-eapitalization-ofthe-Company-a dndadmlnlstratlve

¢ he atnin dv Legd] Settlcment In Tuly 2022, the (()mpdnv filed a legdl dppedl and deposlted 1.6 mllllon
with thc Umted State District (omt ’rm the letlld of Delaware as security during pending our appeal. During the second quarter ended June 30, 2022, the Company
recorded a legal judgement for this amount inclusive of estimated costs. During the third quarter of 2023, the Company received a § 1. 6 million u.lund from the registry
of the court reflecting the recovery of funds following a successful appeal in the Company’ s litigation with an insurer. During November 2023, a settlement agreement
was executed and the insurer paid the Company an additional § 1. 0 million. There is no further litigation with the insurer following the settlement. See “ #tem-3-Note 11
. Eegat-Proeeedings-Commitments and Contingencies " in the footnotes to the financial statements contained in this Report for more information Total other
Income / Expense Total other income was $ 5%5-374 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to total other expense of $ 8875, 000 for the year
ended December 31, 2022-2023 . This inerease-decrease of $ 583-201 . 000 was primarily due to a decrease in interest income discussed below. Interest income was $
640-537 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to mtc1c5te*peﬁse—1ncome of $ 2-640 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 26222023 . The
interest mmlm m%@%%—w as pnmarlly fe%ated—te—mtefest—mmud frem-on cash held in interest bearing banks-- bank accounts aﬁd—depesftsﬂmﬁreeuﬂ—reglstﬁ-aﬁd-t-he
as—rela greements- We also had foreign exchange loss of $ 163, 000 and $ 65 +-060-and-$38-, 000 for the years ended December
31,2024 and 2()23 and-2022-, 1Lspu:m L,ly lLl'llL.d to currency exchange rate measurements with regards to our Australian operations. Net Loss As We-had-a result of
the above factors, nct loss ef-for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was S 17, 504, 000 and $ 17, 984, 000 fer-(net of $ 2. 6 million legal settlement
received), respectively. Liquidity and Capital Resources For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , net cash used in operating activities was $ 16, 485, 000 ,
compared to a-net fess-cash used in operatmg actlvmes of § -38—14 8—3—7’—666 000 for the year ended Detembel 31 2-92—2—2023 Thls éeefease—lncreasee%%()—%%—
000-was primarily dae-related to period & eashimp A : 3 areha A
tn%@%%—due—tfaﬂsﬁeﬁ-ﬁem—of our Inﬂuenza A Phase 2a (.111]1(.&1 trial and preparatlon for our antlclpated Influenza A phase—Phase 1 mhaler admlnlster medicine
odu d Hered aefclinical trial and completion of our COVID- 19 phase-Phase 1
cllnlcal trmli—fer—GBHS-S—&nd—ether—pﬁeduet—eﬁﬂdid&tes— bquid-rty—aﬂd—@apﬁa-l—ﬁeseufees—Fm the ymr Ll]dhd Dccunbu 31, %623—2024 net cash uecd meperat-mg

inv eslm;_, activities netted to % HS8 ()()() W h]eh mnslsled of capital expenduures tm ]db equlpmenl sm‘m are, and
networking for our Lab locdtcd in Bothell, Washington. For the year ended December 31, 20222023 , our net cash used in investing activities consisted of $ 74-118 ,
000. For the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , net cash provided by financing activities was $ 03;993;-800-, compared to net cash used by financing activities of $
273,993 , 000 for the year ended December 31, 2822-2023 . Net cash provided by financing activities in 2023 was result of a raise of $ 4, 000, 000 in a private
placement sale of common stock. -We expect that our reported cash balance s#is not be sufficient to support the Company’ s working capital needs for the 12 months
following the filing of this Report , taking into account our intended research and development efforts in 2025. As a result, we need to complete a financing to
provide the needed working capital . Developing pharmaceutical products, including conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials, is capital- intensive. As a rule,
research and development expenses increase substantially as a company advances a product candidate toward clinical programs. Historically, we have financed our



operations with the proceeds from public and private equity and debt offerings, including additional investments by certain ex1stmg stockholders and entered into
strategic parmershlps and collaborauons for the research developmenl and commermaluallon of product candldaleq - h a § ek

that Pl 2 1: 14 1 =i 1 L, d didatathat i Ph 1 I 410l -+
thatts uuuuuu] HatnaseZa-erearrrarahtapat—virarcoronavirusScRorovirus yn\luuv» €af tHatis-eutr uu] H-a1rnRase—T trrar-we-may-neea-to-raise

a b g y A . The
Company is party to the At- The Market Offermg Agreement dated July 1 2020 (“ ATM Agreement ”) w1th H. C Wamwnght & Co LLC (“ Wamwnght ”) pursuant
to which the Company may issue and sell over time and from time to time, to or through Wainwright, up to $ 10, 000, 000 of shares of the Company’ s common stock. In
January 2021, the Company sold 1, 030, 000 shares of its common stock pursuant to the ATM Agreement for net proceeds of approximately $ 2. 1 million. There have
been no sales under the ATM Agreement since then. Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements This Annual Report includes forward- looking statements
within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements regarding our plans for the future development of preclinical and
clinical drug candidates, our expectations regarding future characteristics of the product candidates we develop, the expected time of achieving certain value driving
milestones in our programs, including, preparation, commencement and advancement of clinical studies for certain product candidates in 2624-2025 , our expectations
with respect to market opportunmes for certam product candldates and our plans regardmg further clinical development of such product candidates, our search for
collaboration partners g v SURE-, our expectations regarding future operating results, statement regarding the
suitability and adequacy ofour plopemes and capltal resources, and our future liquidity. The words “ believe, ” “ may, ” *“ estimate, ” *“ continue, ” *“ anticipate,
intend, ” *“ should, ” ““ plan, ” ““ could, ” *“ target, ” “ potential, ” “ is likely, ” “ will, ” “ expect " and similar expressions, as they relate to us, are intended to identify
forward- looking statements. We have based these forward- looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial
trends that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of operations, business strategy and financial needs. The results anticipated by any or all of these
forward- looking statements might not occur. Important factors, uncertainties and risks that may cause actual results to differ materially from these forward- looking
statements include inflation, the possibility of recession, interest rate increases , imposed and threatened tariffs and geopolitical conflicts including the conflicts in
Ukraine and Israel on our Company, our collaboration partners, and on the U. S., U. K., Australia and global economy, including manufacturing and research delays
arising from raw materials and labor shortages, supply chain disruptions and other business interruptions including any adverse impacts on our ability to obtain raw
materials and test animals as well as similar problems with our vendors and our current and any future CROs and CMOs, the progress and results of the studies for CC-
42344 and CDI- 988 including the delay of the Phase 2a study for CC- 42344 which may require us to incur substantial additional costs , the ability of our CROs
to recruit volunteers for, and to proceed with, clinical studies, our and our collaboration partners’ technology and software performing as expected, financial difficulties
experienced by certain partners, the results of future preclinical and clinical trials, general risks arising from clinical trials, receipt of regulatory approvals, regulatory
changes including based on initiatives and actions taken by the Trump Administration which could, among other things, result in delays in regulatory
approvals or limit access to federal funding for our programs , development of effective treatments and / or vaccines by competitors, including as part of the
programs financed by the U. S. government, and potential mutations in a virus we are targeting which may result in variants that are resistant to a product candidate we
develop. Further information on such uncertainties and risks is contained in the “ Risk Factors " in Item 1A of #his-this Annual Report. We undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward- looking statements, whether as the result of new information, future events or otherwise. For more information regarding some of
the ongoing risks and uncertainties of our business, see “ Item 1A — Risk Factors ”” and our other filings with the SEC. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates Our
management’ s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with U. S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, or GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and expenses. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate these estimates and judgments, including those
described below. We base our estimates on our historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. These
estimates and assumptions form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results and experiences may differ materially from these estimates. While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we believe that the following accounting
policies are the most critical to aid you in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results and affect the more significant judgments and estimates that
we use in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Stock- Based Compensation We account for stock options related to our equity incentive plans under
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ) Accounting Standards Codification (* ASC ™) 718 which requires the recognition of the fair value
of stock- based compensation. The fair value of stock options is estimated using a Black- Scholes option valuation model. This model requires the input of subjective
assumptions including expected stock price volatility, expected life and estimated forfeitures of each award. The fair value of equity- based awards is amortized over the
requisite service period of the award. Due to the limited amount of historical data available to us, particularly with respect to stock- price volatility, employee exercise
patterns and forfeitures, actual results could differ from our assumptions. Recently Issued Accounting Standards See discussion in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk Item 8. Financial Statements The consolidated financial statements of Cocrystal
Pharma, Inc. required by this Item are described in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K and are presented beginning on page F- 1. COCRYSTAL PHARMA,
INC. INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No. 572) F-
2 Consolidated Balance Sheets F- 3 Consolidated Statements of Operations F- 4 Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity F- 5 Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows F- 6 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- 7REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM Board of Directors and
Stockholders Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. Opinion on the €enselidated-Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cocrystal
Pharma, Inc. (the “ Company ”) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the ““ consolidated financial statements ). In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements, the Company suffered a net loss from operations and used cash in operations, which raises substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans regarding those matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty . Basis for Opinion These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (-efthe-United States ) (“ PCAOB ”) and are required to be independent with respect
to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit-audits , we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current- period audit of the financial statements that were communicated
or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. We determined that there are no critical audit matters. We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2019.
/s / Weinberg & Company, P. A —~Los Angeles, California March 28-31 , 2624-2025 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS ( Dollars and shares in thousands,
except per share data) December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Assets Current assets: Cash $ 9, 860 $ 26, 353 $3%444-Restricted cash 75 75 Tax credit
receivable 1, 215 890 H6-Prepaid expenses and other current assets 430 1, 773 2-243-Total current assets 11, 580 29, 091 46;448-Property and equipment, net 153 271
342-Deposits 46-29 46 Operating lease right- of- use assets, net (including $ 152 and $ 42 ard-$99-to related party) 1, 694 1, 851 274-Total assets $ 13,456 $ 31, 259§
46;:-840-Liabilities and stockholders’ equity Current liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,127 $ 3, 022 $976-Current-maturities-of finaneetease
Habitittes—-Current maturities of operating lease liabilities (including $ 49 and $ 42 and-$-59-(0 related party) 301 240 233-Total current liabilities 2, 428 3, 262 ;246
Long- term liabilities: Operating lease liabilities (including $ 104 and $ 0 and-$~42-to related party) 1, 5051, 613 57Total long- term liabilities 1, 505 1, 613 57Total
liabilities 3, 933 4, 875 +,273-Commitments and contingencies-- Stockholders’ equity: Common stock $ 0. 001 par value; 100, 000 and 150, 000 shares authorized as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-BDeeember-3+2022-, respectively; 10, 174 and-8;443-shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
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Beeember34+;,2022-, respectively 10 810 Additional paid- in capital 342, 931 342, 288 337-489-Accumulated deficit ( 333, 418) (315, 914 H29%-936-) Total
stockholders’ equity 9, 523 26, 384 39;-567Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 13,456 $ 31, 259 $-46;-846-Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial
statements. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 2623-2622-December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Operating expenses: Research and development § 12,
537 $ 15, 169 $42;392-General and administrative 5, 341 5, 990 5:-745-Lcgal settlement = (2, 600) 4:-600-Fmpairments—H9;-092-Total operating expenses 17 878 18,
559 38;-829-1oss from operations ( 17, 878) (18, 559) 38;829)-Other income (expense) theente-: Interest income fexpense)-, net 537 640
derivative-habilittes—2-Foreign exchange loss (163) (65 ¥38-) Total other income fexpense)-, net 374 575 8)-Net loss § (17, 504) $ (17, 984 »$+38;-83F) Net loss
per common share +Jess-pershare-, basic and diluted $ (1. 72) $ (1. 87 3$-(4-—FF) Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 10, 174 9,
651 8443-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY (in thousands) Shares-Ameunt-Capital Pefieit Equity-Common Stock Additional
Paid- in Accumulated Total Stockholdus Sh'ncs Amounl (,apm] Deficit Equnv Balance as of December 31, 2024-8:+43-$-8-$-336;-634-$(259;-093)-$-77-549-Stoek-
8 2022 8, 143 $ 8 $ 337,489 $ (297, 930) § 39, 597 567 Balanee-8:143-$-8-$
Stock- based compcnsfmon—— 801 801 S'llt, ofcommon stock to related entities, net of transaction costs 2, 031 2 3, 998- 4, 000 Net loss--

(I7 984) (17, 984) Ba]dnce as of December 31,2023 10, 174 $ 10 $ 342, 288 $ (315, 914) $ 26, 384 Balance 10, 174 $ 10 $ 342,288 $ (315, 914) $ 26, 384 Stock-
based compensation-- 643- 643 Net loss--- (17, 504) (17, 504) Balance as of December 31, 2024 10, 174 $ 10 $ 342, 931 $ (333, 418) $ 9, 523 Balance 10,174 $10 $
342,931 $ (333, 418) $ 9, 523 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS December 31, 2024 2023 Cash flows from Operating-operating activities: Net
loss $ (17, 504) $ (17, 984 3$-38;-837) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in opcratmg activities: Depreciation —and —amortization expense 126 189
Right of use assets 320 (1, 577) Loss-onimpairmentofgoodwi—9,-092-Stock- based compcnsauon 643 801 Change in operating lease liabilities (210) 1, 563 {2069
Gh&nge—ﬁrf&rr‘v‘altﬁfdeﬂv&ﬁve-}mbﬁrﬁes—%ﬂmnges in operating assets and liabilities: Tax credit receivable ( 325) ( 174 3F4+6-) Prepaid expenses and other
current assets €1, 6753343 470 Deposits 17- Accounts payable and accrued expenses (895) 2, 046 328-Net cash used in operating activities ( 16, 485) ( 14, 666 H24
435-) Investing activities: Purchases of property and equipment ( 8) ( 118 374 Net cash used in investing activities ( 8) (/118 374-) Financing activities: Payments of
finance lease obligations = (7 327) Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of transaction costs - 4, 000 —Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities = 3, 993
2P-Net decrease in cash and restricted cash ( 16, 493) (110, 791 H24-536-) Cash and restricted cash at beginning of period 26, 428 37, 219 58;#55-Cash and restricted
cash at end of period $ 9,935 $ 26, 428 Supplemental disclosure: Non- cash investing and financing activities Initial recognition of right- of- use assets and lease
liabilities $ 37%249-163 $- NOTES TO (()NS()LIDATED FINAN( IAL STATEMENTS For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-1. Organization
and Business . Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. (“ we ”, the “ Company ” or “ Cocrystal ™), a biopharmaceutical company, has been dev eloping novel technologies 1nd

approaches to create first- in- class and best- in- class antiviral drug candidates since its initial funding in 2008. Our focus is to pursue the development and
commercialization of broad- spectrum antiviral drug candidates that will transform the treatment and prophylaxis of viral diseases in humans. By concentrating our
research and development efforts on viral replication inhibitors, we plan to leverage our infrastructure and expertise in these areas. In September 2021, the Company
opened aw hol]y owned 101e1y) subsldmry in Australia named ( ocryslal Pharma Australia, le ( ( ocryslal /\uslmha ) \)th the ob]ecme 01 opelaunu clinical trials in

ed: The ( ompany s consolldaled ﬁnanual statements afe—have been prepared and presented
ed e-a going concern whieh
8 As reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
he rredn A 2 R the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company
recorded a net loss of apploXlITl’llClV $17.5 mllhon —984—999—111(1 uscd cash in operatmg act1v1tles of $ 16. 5 million, and at December 31,2024, the Company has
an accumulated deﬁclt of § 333 4 mllllon As of December 31,2024, the Company had a cash balance of $ 9. 9 mllhon and worklng capltal of approximately $ 9
3 h d A . We believe
that our currenl resources will not be suliluenl to fund our opemlmm beyond lhe next I2 monlhs Tlns estimate is b'lsed in parl upon our culremly projected
expenditures . Due in large part to the ongoing Phase 2a clinical trial for the Company’ s antiviral influenza candidate, we expect to continue to incur net losses
and negative cash flows from operating activities for the foreseeable future. These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern within one year from the issuance of these consolidated financial statements . The Company’ s activities since inception have principally consisted of
acquiring product and technology rights, raising capital, and performing research and development. Successful completion of the Company’ s development programs,
obtaining regulatory approvals of its products and, ultimately, the attainment of profitable operations is dependent on future events, including, among other things, its
ability to access potential markets, secure financing, develop a customer base, attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel, and develop strategic alliances. Through
December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company has primarily funded its operations through equity offerings. The Company will need to continue obtaining adequate capital to
fund operating losses until it becomes profitable. The Company can give no assurances that the additional capital it is able to raise, if any, will be sufficient to meet its
needs, or that any such financing will be obtainable on acceptable terms. Our future cash requirements, and the timing of those requirements, will depend on a number of
factors, including economic conditions, the approval and success of our products in development, the continued progress of research and development of our product
candidates, the timing and outcome of clinical trials and regulatory approvals, the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining, defending, and enforcing
patent claims and other intellectual property rights, the status of competitive products, the availability of financing, our success in developing markets for our product
candidates and legal proceedings that may arise. We have historically not generated sustaied-positive cash flow and if we are not able to secure additional funding
when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or more of our clinical trials or research and development programs. If the Company is unable
to obtain adequate capital, it could be forced to eease-operations-er-substantially curtail its drug development activities or cease operations . The Company expects to
continue mcumng subsmnml 0pc1almg losses and ncgall\c cash ﬂows llom opcmuom over the next sev cral years dunnﬁ 11\ pre- cl1n1c11 and cl1n1ml du clopmcm

bﬁs-mess—a-ﬁd—ﬁﬁaﬂeiﬁ-l—rest&ts— 2 Bdsls ot Presentatmn and ngnmcam /\cu)ummg Pollues Basis mL Plesentatlon The accompanying u)nsollddted fmanual statemems
have been prepared in accordance with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles (“ U. S. GAAP ”), and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“ SEC ”) for reporting of annual financial information. Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Cocrystal Pharma Australia Pty, Ltd., Cocrystal Discovery, Inc., Cocrystal Merger Sub, Inc., Baker
Cummins (om and Blozonc L"tbolaloncs Inc. lnlcmommny transactions "md balances have been eliminated. Segments The Company eperates-in-one-segment—in

h P ] Co- Chlef Executlve Officer and Pres1dent (“CEO ”) is our chief operating decision
mﬁ-kers~ maker (“ CODM ”) and evaluates performance and makes haveb et e view-operating restts-to-make
decisions about allocating resources ad ftt isting-gtidanee vhieh-is bdsed on financlal data presented on 2
management-approach-to lidated basis. Because our CODM evaluates ﬁnanelal performance on a consohdated basns, the Company has determmed that 1t
operates as a single reportable segment composed of rep 8 0 e g
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> i onsohdﬁtcd flmncnl statemeﬁts-results of Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. The measure of segment assets is reported on the
consolidated balance sheets as total assets (see Note 13) . Use of Estimates Preparation of the Company” s consolidated financial statements in conformance with U. S.
GAAP requires the Company’ s management to make estimates and assumptions that impact the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The most significant estimates in the
Company’ s consolidated financial statements relate to clinical trial costs the-valuation-ofequity-awards-and accruals derivative-Habilities; reeoverability-of deferred
tax-assetsrestimated-useful-lives-of fixed-assets;and foreeast-assumptions-used-in-the fﬂﬂ-pﬂfﬂﬂeﬁt—fesﬂ-ﬂg—fall‘ value of geedwill-stock- based compensation . The
Company bases estimates and assumptions on historical experience, when available, and on various factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis, and its actual results may differ from estimates made under different assumptions or conditions.
Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash deposited



in accounts held at two U. S. financial institutions, which may, at times, exceed federally insured limits of $ 250, 000 for each institution accounts are held. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, our primary operating account held approximately $ +6-9 , 327860 ., 000 and $ 3726 , +44-353 , 000, respectively, and our
collateral account balance of $ 75, 000 as of December 31, 2023-2024 and other cash accounts are maintained at different institutions. The Company has not experienced
any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to significant risks thereof. #8-Risks and Uncertainties The Company’ s future results of operations involve a
number of risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company” s future operating results and cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include,
but are not limited to, rapid technological change, ability to obtain regulatory approvals, competition from currently available treatments and therapies, competition from
larger companies, effective protection of proprietary technology, maintenance of strategic relationships, and dependence on key individuals. Products developed by the
Company will require clearances from the U. S. Food and Drug Administration (the “ FDA ) and other international regulatory agencies prior to commercial sales in
their respective markets. The Company’ s products may not receive the necessary clearances and if they are denied clearance, clearance is delayed, or the Company is
unable to maintain clearance, the Company’ s business could be materially, adversely impacted. F- 8 Cash and Restricted Cash The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity from the date of purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents, and the Company held no cash equivalents as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the consolidated balance sheets that
sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands): Schedule of Reconciliation of Cash and Restricted Cash
December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Cash $ 9, 860 $ 26, 353 $3F44-Restricted cash 75 75 Total cash and restricted cash shown in the statements of
cash flows $ 9,935 $ 26, 428 $37,239-Restricted cash represents amounts pledged as collateral for financing arrangements that are currently limited to the issuance of
business credit cards. The restriction will end upon the conclusion of these financing arrangements. Property and Equipment , net Property and equipment, which
consists of lab equipment (including lab equipment under capital lease), computer equipment, and office equipment, is recorded at cost and depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the underlying assets (three to five years) using the straight- line method Malntenance and repalrs are charged dlrectly to expense as
incurred. [cases The C ompdny accounts for its leases efﬁe&spae&m Mxe:mt—accordance with ASC 842 . HFle a a 3
operatingleases-Leases tha HE an ATy vely- The Company determines whether a contract is,or contalns,a leasc at
inception %ﬁeuf%ﬁﬁﬂ-efﬁeﬁs—wﬁhﬂﬁehfedﬁaﬁr(see-be}ew} Operatmg lease right- of- use (“ ROU ”) assets and liabilities are recognized at the lease
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term.ROU assets represent eur-the Company’ s right to use an underlying asset for
during the lease term , and lease liabilities represent eur-the Company’ s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.Generally,the implicit rate of interest
in arrangements is not readily determinable and the Company utilizes its incremental borrowing rate in determining the present value of lease payments.The Company’ s
incremental borrowing rate is a hypothetical collateralized borrowing rate based on its understanding of what its credit rating would be ~Fhe-eperating-. Fair Value
Measurements FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ) 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted
accounting principles and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined under ASC 820 as the exchange price that would be received for an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under ASC 820 must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last
unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value which are the following: Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 —
other significant observable inputs for the assets or liabilities through corroboration with market data at the measurement date. Level 3 — significant unobservable
inputs that reflect management’ s best estimate of what market participants would use to price the assets or liabilities at the measurement date. F- 9 The Company
categorizes its cash and restricted cash as Level 1 fair value measurements. The Company categorizes its warrants potentially settleable in cash as Level 3 fair value
measurements. The warrants potentially settleable in cash are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are being marked to fair value at each reporting date until
they are completely settled or meet the requirements to be accounted for as component of stockholders’ equity. The warrants are valued using the Black- Scholes option
pricing model as discussed in Note 9-6 — Warrants. At December 31, 2023 and-the Company had approximately 11, 000 warrants that expired in January 2622
2024 , there we no warrants outstanding at December 31, 2024. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 , the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities, such as
cash, othcr assets, 'md accounts pay'tblc and accrucd cxpcnsc@ approx1m1tc thur falr values due to their @hort term nature —"Phe—Gempaﬂy—kms—net—&aﬁs-feﬁed—&ny
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lates-. Long- Lived Assets The Company regularly reviews the carrying value and estimated lives of its long- lived
assets, lmludmg property and equlpment to detcrmlne whether indicators of impairment may exist which warrant adjustments to carrying values or estimated useful
lives. The determinants used for this evaluation include management’ s estimate of the asset” s ability to generate positive income from operations and positive cash flow
in future periods as well as the strategic significance of the assets to the Company’ s business objective. Should an impairment exist, the impairment loss would be
measured based on the excess of the carrying amount over the asset’ s fair value. F=+8-Patent and Licensing Related Legal and Filing Costs Due to the significant
uncertainty associated with the successful development of one or more commercially viable products based on the Company” s research efforts and related patent
applications, all patent- related legal and filing fees and licensing- related legal fees are charged to operations as incurred. Patent and licensing- related legal and filing
costs were $ 497, 000 and $ 396 -006-and-$-566-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. Patent and licensing related legal and
filing costs are included in general and administrative costs in the Company”’ s consolidated statements of operations. Research and Development Expenses Research
and development costs consist primarily of fees paid to consultants and outside service providers, and other expenses relating to the acquisition, design, development
and testing of the Company” s clinical products. All research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs are presented net of tax
credits. The Company’ s Australian subsidiary is entitled to receive government assistance in the form of refundable and non- refundable research and development tax
credits from the federal and provincial taxation authorities, based on qualifying expenditures incurred during the fiscal year. The refundable credits are from the
provincial taxation authorities and are not dependent on its ongoing tax status or tax position and accordingly are not considered part of income taxes. The Company
records refundable tax credits as a reduction of research and development expenses when the Company can reasonably estimate the amounts and it is more likely than
not, they will be received. During the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company recorded tax credits receivable of $ §96-1 , 666-123, 843 , of which
approximately $ 823-1 , 606-146, 593 was recorded as a reduction of research and development expense. Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes under
the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future taxable income. A valuation allowance is recognized if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized based on the weight of available evidence, including expected future earnings. The Company recognizes an uncertain tax position
in its financial statements when it concludes that a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination based solely on its technical merits. Only after a
tax position passes the first step of recognition will measurement be required. Under the measurement step, the tax benefit is measured as the largest amount of benefit
that is more likely than not to be realized upon effective settlement. This is determined on a cumulative probability basis. The full impact of any change in recognition or
measurement is reflected in the period in which such change occurs. The Company elects to accrue any interest or penalties related to income taxes as part of its income
tax expense. F- 10 The Company periodically issues stock- based compensation to officers, directors, and consultants for services rendered. Such issuances vest and
expire according to terms established at the issuance date. Stock- based payments to employees, directors, and for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees,
which include grants of employee stock options, are recognized in the financial statements based on their grant date fair values in accordance with ASC 718,
Compensation- Stock Compensation. Stock option grants to employees, which are generally time vested, are measured at the grant date fair value and depending on the
conditions associated with the vesting of the award, compensation cost is recognized on a straight- line or graded basis over the vesting period. Recognition of
compensation expense for non- employees is in the same period and manner as if the Company had paid cash for the services. The fair value of stock options granted is
estimated using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model, which uses certain assumptions related to risk- free interest rates, expected volatility, expected life, and future




dividends. The assumptions used in the Black- Scholes option pricing model could materially affect compensation expense recorded in future periods. F==H4-Common
Stock Purchase Warrants and Other Derivative Financial Instruments We classify as equity any contracts that require physical settlement or net- share settlement or
provide us a choice of net- cash settlement or settlement in our own shares (physical settlement or net- share settlement) provided that such contracts are indexed to our
own stock as defined in ASC 815- 40, Contracts in Entity’ s Own Equity. We classify as assets or liabilities any contracts that require net- cash settlement (including a
requirement to net cash settle the contract if an event occurs and if that event is outside our control) or give the counterparty a choice of net- cash settlement or
settlement in shares (physical settlement or net- share settlement). We assess the classification of our common stock purchase warrants and other freestanding
derivatives at each reporting date to determine whether a change in classification between assets and liabilities is required. Net Income (Loss) per Share The Company
accounts for and discloses net income (loss) per common share in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings Per Share. Basic income (loss) per common share is
computed by dividing income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per
common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares that would have been
outstanding during the period assuming the issuance of common stock for all potential dilutive common shares outstanding. Potential common shares consist of shares
issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants. The following table sets forth the number of potential common shares excluded from the calculations of net
loss per diluted share because their inclusion would be anti- dilutive (in thousands): Schedule of Anti- Antidilutive—--- dilutive Securities Excluded from Calculations
of Net Loss Per Share December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Outstanding options to purchase common stock 550 558 356-Warrants to purchase common stock = 11 43
Unvested restricted stock units 164- Total 714 569 363-F- 11 Recent Accounting Pronouncements In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 07, “ Segment
Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosure. ” Thc amendments expand a public entity’ s segment disclosures by requiring
disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker, requiring other new disclosures, and requiring
enhanced interim disclosures. ASU 2023- 07 requires public entities with a single reportable segment to provide all the disclosures required by this standard
and all existing segment disclosures in Topic 280 on an interim and annual basis. ASU 2023- 07 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2023, and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2024, applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted. As of December 31, 2024, the Company
has adopted ASU 2023- 07. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’ s management lidated financial statements but
has resulted in additional disclosures within the footnotes to our consolidated financial statements (See Note 13). In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU
2024- 03, Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40). ASU 2024- 03 amends the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification to require specified information about certain costs and expenses in the notes to the financial statements at each interim
and annual reporting period, including disclosure of the amounts of purchases of inventory; employee compensation; depreciation; intangible asset
amortization; and depreciation, depletion, and amortization included in each relevant expense caption on the face of the income statement within continuing
operations that contains any of the expense categories previously listed. Disclosure will also be required of the total a t of selling exp and an entity’ s
definition of selling expenses in annual reporting periods. ASU 2024- 03 does not change or remove current expense disclosure requirements, but does affect
where and how this information is presented in the notes to the financial statements. ASU 2024- 03 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning January
1, 2027, and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2028. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of
evaluating ASU 2024- 03 to determine its impact on the Company’ s consolidated financial statement presentation and evaluated-—- related att-disclosures.
Management does not belleve that any t-he—other 1eccml» 1ssued but not yet LIf ective, authorltatlve ﬁeee&ﬁﬁﬂg—ﬁﬁﬂé&fé&-ﬁﬂd—éuld’lm,t t-h&t— 1f currently adopted
would have been 5 6 e e

a matuml effeet—lmpact on thc Company’ s fmdncml pes-x-t-xen—statements, mcludmg thelr presentatlon and related
disclosures results-efoperations-. 3. Foreign Currency Remeasurement The U. S. dollar has been determined to be the functional currency for the net assets of Cocrystal
Australia operations. The transactions are recorded in the local currencies and are remeasured at each reporting date using the historical rates for nonmonetary assets
and liabilities and current exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses from the remeasurement of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognized in other income (loss). The Company recognized afra loss of approximately $ 163, 000 and $ 65 5-666-and-$—+8-, 000 for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022- the Company’ s cash balances consisted of the following
(in thousands): Schedule of Cash Balance 2024 2023 2622-U. S. Dollars $ 9, 554 $ 26, 402 $37377Australian Dollars — in US $ 381 26 42-Cash Balance $ 9,935 $§
26, 428 $37-249-F—12-4. Property and Equipment Property and equipment as of December 31, consists of the following (table in thousands): Schedule of Property and
Equipment 2024 2023 2622-Lab equipment (excluding equipment under finance leases) $ 1, 757765 $ 1, 634757 Finance lease right- of- use lab equipment obtained in
exchange for finance lease liabilities, net 162 494-162 Computer and office equipment 155 434155 Total property and equipment 2, 082 2, 074 +5-956-Less accumulated
depreciation (1, 929) (1, 803 5-6+4-) Property and equipment, net $ 153 $ 271 -$—342—Dep1ee11110n cxpensu was $ 126 000 and $ 189 —999-&-1&&—$—l—8§- 000 Fm ll‘le
years cndcd l)eeembct 31, 2024 and 7073 a-nd—292%— 1cspem\ el\ F- 12 5 v y npatre R
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y = yha 6 AL.COU]][S Payable and Aeuued l:\penses Acwums pa\ able and accrued
expenses u)nslsled of the 10]10\\ ing as 01 Deeemhel 31, (ldb]e in lh()usdnds) §Lhedule of Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2024 2023 Accounts payable $ 1,
542 $ 1, 222 $-Accrued compensation 117 109 Accrued other expenses 468 1, 691 Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,127 $ 3, 022 $-Accounts payable
and accrued other expenses contain unpaid general and administrative expenses and costs related to research and development that have been billed and estimated
unbilled, respectively, as of year- end. 6 . Common Stock On June 27, 2024, the Company, following approval of the Company’ s stockholders at the 2024
Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed an amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware (the “ Amendment
”) to decrease the number of shares of authorized capital stock of the Company from 155, 000, 000 shares of capital stock, consisting of 150, 000, 000 shares of
common stock and 5, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, to 101, 000, 000 shares of capital stock consisting of 100, 000, 000 shares of common stock and 1, 000,
000 shares of preferred stock. The Amendment became effective on June 27, 2024. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company has authorized +56-100 , 000,
000 shares of common stock, $ 0. 001 par value per share. The Company had approximately 10, 174, 000 and-8;343-608-shares issued and outstanding as of December
31,2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held. Sale of Common Stock to
Related Entities On April 4, 2023, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors (the “ Purchasers ”’) whereby the
Purchasers agreed to purchase a total of 2, 030, 458 shares of unregistered common stock at a price of $ 1. 97 per share for a total purchase price of $ 4, 000, 000 in two
equal $ 2, 000, 000 investments. The Purchasers were an entity controlled by a director and another investor who subsequently joined the Company’ s Board of
Directors. At- The- Market Offering The Company as-is a party to the At- The- Market Offering Agreement, dated July 1, 2020 (“ ATM Agreement ”) with H. C.
Wainwright & Co., LLC (“ Wainwright ”), pursuant to w hth the C ()lT\pd]]V may issue and sell over time and ll()]l‘l time to time, to or lhl()uu \Mun\\ rwh( up to $ 10,
000, 000 of shares of the Company’ s common stock —PuringJanua 9 A 3 §

. There have been no salu undu the }\TM

Agreement s-mee—W-aﬁaﬂts—durmg the years ended December 31 2024 and
2023. The following is a summary of activity in the number of warrants outstanding to purchase the Company’ s common stock for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022(table in thousands):Schedule of Warrants Activity Warrants Accounted for as: Equity-WarrantsAeeounted-for-as:-Liabilitics May2048-Warrants
October 2013 Warrants January 2014 Warrants Total Outstanding,December 31, 2624-2022 72 11 26-13 Exercised —-- Granted--- —Expired B
Outstanding;Deeember3+2022-2-H13-Exereised—=GCranted—-Expired—(2)- (2) Outstanding,December 31,2023- —11 11 Exercised--- Granted--- Expired- (11)
(11) Outstanding,December 31,2024--- Expiration date ©et272622-Oct 24,2023 Jan 16,2024 As Warrants-outstanding-as-of December 31,2023 and-2022-ineluded
,the above outstanding warrants swith-were liability classified warrants,which had de minimis fair value as of thc year thcn ended . 8-As of December 31, 2023 the
Company had approxnmately 11 000 warrants that explred in January 2024 there we no warrants outstandmg as of December 31 2024 7 . Stock Based

fﬂeeﬂt-we—p}aﬂ—mﬂ()li IhL. 2015 Plan ) under w! hlch 833. 333 shares of common stock hd\L been reserved fm issuance to emplovus and non- empl()\ ee dmerms and
consultants of the Company. Recipients of incentive stock options granted under the 2015 Plan shall be eligible to purchase shares of the Company’ s common stock at



granted under the 2015 Plan is

an exercise price cqual to no less thdn thc csnmatcd fdll mdll\LT \aluc 01‘ such stock on thc date of grant. Ihc max1mum term of optmn*
ten years. Fh genera re h-th maitn olte As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
27 m-x-l-l-teﬁ-epﬂeas— 000 shares remain available tot tuturc gfaﬁt—grants undu the O] 5 Plan. Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance The
following table presents information concerning common stock available for future issuance (in thousands) as of December 31, 2024: Schedule of Common
Stock Available for Future I e Shares Available for Grant Balance at December 31, 2023 275 Restricted Stock Units (RSU) Granted (256) Cancelled or
returned 8 Balance at December 31, 2024 27 - +4-13 Stock Options The following table summarizes stock option transactions for the 2007Plan-and-2015 Plan,
collectively, for thesyears— year ended December 31, 2023-2024 and-2022-( table-in thousands, except per share amounts): Schedule of Share—based-Compensation;
Stock@pt-teﬂs— Option Transactions ;Aetivity Numberof SharesAvatlablefor-Grant-Total Options Outstanding Weighted Average Exercise Price Aggregate Intrinsic
Value Balance at December 31, 26242022 350 629-205-5 23-15 . 76-36 $- Granted 209 2 (35814585~ 64-67 - Expired +2-( 4233324—Caneeed-1 (+-) 1522 . 369-89-
Balance at December 31, 2022-2023 558 484-350-5 45-10 . 36-37 $ 9 Exercised--- Granted (209)-2092-67- Expired— - Cancelled (4-8 ) - 22-89-- Balance at
December 31, 2023-2024 275-558-550 $ 10. 5737 $ - No options were granted during the year ended December 31, 2024. During the year ended December 31,
2023 the Company granted stock options to officers, directors, employees and consultants to purchase a total of 209, 216 shares of common stock. The options have an
exercise price of $ 2. 67 per share, expire in ten years, and vest as follows: one half vests on the one- year anniversary of the grant date and the remainder will vest in
eight equal quarterly increments with the first such quarterly increment vesting on September 30, 2023. The total fair value of these options at the grant date was
approximately $ 470, 000 using the Black- Scholes Option pricing model. The Black- Scholes option pricing model includes the following weighted avers
assumptions for grants made during the year ended December 31, 2023: Schedule of Weighted Average Assumptions Used for GrantsAssumptions: chhlcd average
pu sh‘uc grant datc fair value $ 2. 67 Risk- hcc interest rate 3. 96 % Expected dmdcnd wdd 0 00 “o l'xputcd volatility 112. 02 % E xputcd terms (in y us) 5.77

For options g Lmnled dlld oulsldndnw lhele were 558550 ., 000 optl(»m outstanding which were fully \ested or cxpecled to vest,

B;-a weighted average exercise price of $ 10. 37 38;-and weighted average remaining contractual term of 87 . 2-22 years at December 31, 2623-2024 . For vested an(l
exercisable options, outstanding shares tetated-totalled 279-453 , ()()()—wrt-hﬂfﬁ}ggrega-t&mtﬁnﬂ-le—vai-u&e%—@—@- These options had a weighted —average exercise price
of § 4711 . 4792 per share and a weighted- average remaining contractual term of -6 . 2-98 years at December 31, 2023-2024 . The aggregate intrinsic value of
outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2023-2024 was calculated based on the positive difference between the closing price of the Company’ s common
stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Market on December 31, 2623-2024 of approximately $ +2 . #2-02 per share and fess-the exercise price of the underlymg
opnons )— Slihe-ﬂggfegateAs of December 31 2024, total outstandmg and exerclsable optlons had no lnllll‘lslﬂ. \ aluc

Thc following mblc }’)ILS\.HIS 111T01mdt10n concerning common stock av. alldblc for future issuance as of Dcu.mbt,l 31, (in thousan(l\‘)' Schedule of Common Stock
Reserved for Future Issuance 2024 2023 Stock options issued and t)LllSld]ldl]lL 806 558 §lmlcs authorized lm lululc opllon grants 27 275 Warrants oulshmdln” -11
Total 833 844 Restricted Stock Units On August 12, 2024, 9- f e z
Company’ s eemmen-Compensation Committee approved the issuance of 256, 000 restrlcted slock unit (“ RSU ”) awards to non- employee dlrectors, officers,
consultants and employees. The aggregate fair value of the restricted stock unit awards granted was estimated to be $ 451, 000 using the market price of the
stock on the date of the grant which is expensed using the straight- line method over the vesting period. Schedule of Restricted Stock Units Total Restricted
Stock units Outstanding Weighted Average Fair Value Aggregate Intrinsic Value Unvested December 31, 2023- $- $- Granted 256-- Forfeited--- Vested 92 1.
76- Unvested and expected to vest at December 31,2024 164 $ 1. 76 $- The Company accounts for share- based awards to employees and
directors and consultants in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation., and under the recently issued guidance
following FASB’ s pronouncement, ASU 2018- 07, Compensation — Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share- Based Payment
Accounting. Under ASC 718, and applicable updates adopted, share- based awards are valued at fair value on the date of grant and that fair value is
recognized over the requisite service, or vesting, period. The Company values its equity awards using the Black- Scholes option prlcmg model, and accounts
for forfeitures when the-they years-occur. For the twelve months cnded December 31, 2024 and 2023 ,
W&rra-nts—ﬁreeouﬁted—?eﬁas*—Eqmt-y—equlty W&rr&nth*eeoanted—?eﬁ based compensatlon expense recorded on vested options and RSU as-was $ 643 - Eiabilities

A 000 and 801, 000 respectlvely As of Dcu,mbu 31, 292—1—7%—1—1—20—E-xeeetsed-
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0’4 there was approximately $ 252 000 of total unrecogmzed compensatlon expense related to non- vested
stock optlons that i is expected to be recogmzed over a welghted average perlod of 0.4 years. F- 14 6 g
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Zero; b the-Company-has-he-presentintention-to-pay-eash-dividends—F—471+6- Licenses dnd Collaborations Mcuk Sharp & Dohmc ( orp. ()n January 2 , 201 9, the
Company entered into an Exclusive License and Research Collaboration Agreement (the “ Collaboration Agreement ) with Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp. (“ Merck ™) to
discover and develop certain proprietary influenza A / B antiviral agents. Under the terms of the Collaboration Agreement, Merck agreed to fund research and
development for the program, including clinical development, and will be responsible for worldwide commercialization of any products derived from the collaboration.
Cocrystal received an upfront payment of $ 4 million and was eligible to receive payments related to designated development, regulatory and sales milestones with the
potential to earn up to $ 156, 000, 000, as well as royalties on product sales. Merck can terminate the Collaboration Agreement at any time prior to the first commercial
sale of the first product developed under the Collaboration Agreement, in its sole discretion, without cause. On December 15, 2023, the Company received written
notice from Merck of Merck’ s election to terminate the Exclusive License and Collaboration Agreement. The termination of the Agreement is-was effective on March
14, 2024. According to Merck’ s termination notice, Merck determined there were no existing conditions to continue the collaboration. The termination resulted from
the inability to develop the compounds to meet a specific aspect of Merck’ s program. The pending patent applications on compounds covered by the Agreement and
previously filed by Merck on behalf of both companies remain in place. Kansas State University Research Foundation Coerystal On-February18;2620;-the-Company
entered into a-twe License /\grumcntft-he—kgreemeﬁt&)-\n ith Kan Statc University Research F oundatlon (thc F uundatlon )effeeﬁve—on F cbrudr) -1—2-18 70’0-
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On Fcblu"ny 28 2()24 lhc Company prowdcd notice to lhu Foundallon of the (ompany S LlLCllOn to tummalc both-the 2020 Llccmc Agrccmcnl% The lcrmlmllom
which were made due to the Compdny s detelmmatmn that tmther development efforts under the License Agreements would be futile, are-took effeetive---- effect on
March 29, 2024. F Fh A aHy-prog s-fu 15 988ter-eoronaviruses-and-norevirus—"hase 2a Clinical Trial In
August, 2022, the Company enoaged hVIVO a subsldlary of London- based Open Orphan ple (AIM: ORPH), a rapidly-growingspeetatist-contract research organization
(CRO), to conduct a Phase 2a clinical trial (the “ Study ) with the Company’ s novel, broad- spectrum, orally administered antiviral influenza candidate. The Company
paid a reservation fee of § 1. 7 million upon execution of the Start- Up Agreement (the “ Agreement ™) for the Study. The Company recognized the reservation fee as
prepaid asset on its balance sheet at December 31, 2022. In September 2023, the Clinical Trial Agreement (“ CTA ) was executed by the Company and hVIVO, which
supersedes-superseded the Agreement, including the terms attributable to the reservation fee. Under the terms of the CTA, total budget of the Study was approximately
$ 6. 8 million, which consisted of the reservation fee of $ 1. 7 million and additional milestone payments totaling approximately $ 5. 1 million. The reduction of the
reservation fee and the milestone payments will become due during the length of the CTA as milestones are realized. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, upon achievement of certain milestones, the reservation fee was reduced by approximately $ 446-1. 28 million and $ 0. 4 million , 666-respectively , which was
recognized as expense during the year then ended. As a result, the-there was no balance of the reservation fee was-approximately-$1-—28-mithon-whieh4s-included in
prepaid expenses as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Pursuant to the CTA, additional milestones payments totaling-appreximately-$2—6+mithien-became due during the
year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, resulting in the recognition during the year of aggregate expenses of § 2. 2 million and $ 3. 05 million , respectively inetrred
onrthe-CTA- As of Dccuubcr 31,2023-2024 , $+0 . 9-5 million was due on the CTA which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. 9 F=+8-+-. Income Taxes In accordance with the authoritative guidance for income taxes under ASC 740, a deferred tax asset or liability is
determined based on the difference between the financial statement and the tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates, which will be in effect
when these differences reverse. The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the consolidated financial statements only if that position is
more likely than not of being sustained upon examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The Company’ s practice is to recognize
interest and / or penalties related to income tax matters as income tax expense. The Company is subject to taxation and files income tax returns in the United States,
Australia and various state jurisdictions. All tax years from inception to date are subject to examination by the U. S. and state tax authorities due to the carry- forward of
unutilized net operating losses and research and development credits. Currently, no years are under examination. Significant components of the Company’ s deferred
income taxes at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-arc shown below (table in thousands): Schedule of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 2024 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets: Net operating loss carryforwards $ 23, 672 $ 22, 005 $23;368-Compensation 666 583 474-Research and development tax credits 3, 543 3, 196 25
FHO-Capitalized and Research Expenditures 6, 935 5, 288 2;-595-Other 789 848 48F-Total deferred tax assets 35, 605 31, 920 2%-633-Deferred tax liabilities: Property
and equipment ( 16) (29) €A-Other ( 371) (410 366-) Total deferred tax liabilities ( 387) (439 H8F) Total deferred taxes, net 35,218 31, 481 27-546-Valuation
allowance ( 35, 218) (31, 481 H2%-546-) Deferred tax liability, net $- $- F- 16 The Company has established a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets due
to the uncertainty that %uch assets will be realized. The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of the deferred tax assets. At such time as it is determined that
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atd he-ta e-in or-the-ta a h . The fedcldl NOL calryl‘orwands begm to expire in 2026 At December 31, %(-)2—3—2024 the
Company had federal research CILdlt car ryforv» ard% of approxunatcly $ 3. 2-5 million that expire in 2028 A

. The above NOL carryforward and the research tax credit carryforward are sub]ect to an annual llmltatmn undel the Seatlon 382 and
383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and similar state provisions if the Company experienced one or more ownership changes, which would limit the amount of
NOL and tax credit carryforwards that can be utilized to offset future taxable income and tax, respectively. In general, an ownership change, as defined by Section 382
and 383, results from transactions increasing ownership of certain stockholders or public groups in the stock of the corporation by more than 50 percentage points over a
three- year period. The Company has not completed an IRC Section 382 / 382 analysis. If a change in ownership were to have occurred, NOL and tax credits
carryforwards could be eliminated or restricted. If eliminated, the related asset would be removed from the deferred tax asset schedule with a corresponding reduction in
the valuation allowance. A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’ s effective income tax rate is as follows: Schedule of Reconciliation
of Federal Statutory Income Tax Rate 2024 2023 2022-Statutory federal income tax rate 21. 0 % 21. 0 % GeeodwillHimpatrment-0—0-%-(10-—3)1%-Research credits 1. 9 %
2.8 % 8F%-Change in valuation allowance ( 20. 1) % (21. 9 ¥%+6-—2-) % Equity compensation (0. 3) % (0. 4) % ¢Foreign rate differential 1. 4-3 % 0. 6 % Other
tax, credit and adjustments ( 3. 8) % (2. 1 —5-) %-6-—2-% Effective income tax rate 0. 0 % 0. 0 % +2-10 . Lease Commitments Operating Leases The Company leases
office space in Miami, Florida and research and development laboratory space in Bothell, Washington under operating leases that expire on Augast3+September 30 ,
2024-2027 and January 31, 2031, respectively. Fhe-For operating leases, the weighted average discount rate is 6. 4 % and the weighted average remaining lcasc
term forourMiamtoffiee-is 5. 2 years with-arelated-party(see-betow)-. Operating lease right- of- use (“ ROU 7) assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement
date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. ROU assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities
represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Generally, the implicit rate of interest in arrangements is not readily determinable and the
Company utilizes its incremental borrowing rate in determining the present value of lease payments. The Company’ s incremental borrowing rate is a hypothetical rate
based on its understanding of what its credit rating would be. The operating lease ROU asset includes any lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. F- 26-17
The components of rent expense and supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the period are as follows (tables in thousands): Schedule of Components of
Rent Expense and Supplemental Cash Flow Information Year Ended December 31, 2024 Year Ended December 31, 2023 Lease Cost Operating lease cost (included in
operating expenses in the Company’ s consolidated statement-statements of operations) $ 233-393 $ Other Information Cash paid for amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities $ 233-265 $ Weighted average remaining lease term — operating leases (in years) 5.2 0. 8 Average discount rate — operating leases 6. 4
% 6. 2 % The supplemental balance sheet information related to leases for the period is as follows (tables in thousands): Schedule of Supplemental Balance Sheet
Information At December 31, 2023-2024 At December 31, 2022-2023 Operating leases Long- term right- of- use assets of which $ 152 and $ 42 and-$-99-relates to
related party, respectively, net of accumulated amortization of $ 1,270 and $ 950 , respectively and-$-592-5 1. 694 $ 1, 851 $274-Short- term operating lease
liabilities, of which $ 49 and $ 42 and-$-59-rclates to related party , respectively 301 240 233-Long- term operating lease liabilities, of which $ 104 and $ 0 and-$42
relates to related party , respectively 1, 505 1, 613 57Total operating lease liabilities $ 1, 806 $ 1, 853 $296-Schedule of Maturities of Lease FiabilitiesYear—---
Liabilities Year cnding December 31, (in thousands) 2024-264-2025 344-407 2026 355419 2027 365-415 2028 376 2029 249 2030 and thereafter 543-264 Total
minimum operating lease payments $ 2, 247130 Less: present value discount ( 364-324 ) Total operating lease liabilities $ 1, 853-806 In April 2023, the Company
renewed its lease for the unit 100 at the Bothel, Washington facility (“ Bothel 100 ”) for an 84- month (7 years) term, starting February 1, 2024, and ending on




January 31, 2031. The Company classified the amended lease as an operating lease pursuant to the provisions of ASC 842 and calculated the discounted value
of the total lease payments to be approximately $ 1, 224, 000 using a discount rate of 6 %. This amount was recognized as the lease liability and right- of use
asset at the renewal date of the lease. As the renewal occurred in 2023, the Company deemed it appropriate to recognize both the right- of- use asset and lease
liability for the extension term in 2023, with no amortization of the asset until the commencement of the extension term in February 2024. In September 2023,
following the renewal of the Bothell 100 facility lease, the Company amended the agreement to expand the premises to include Suite 200 (“ Bothell 200 facility
). The lease for the Bothell 200 facility has a 60- month (5- year) term, running from February 1, 2024, through January 31, 2029. The Company classified the
lease as an operating lease and calculated the discounted value of the total lease payments to be approximately $ 571, 000, using a 6 % discount rate. This
amount was recognized as the lease liability and right- of- use asset at the lease commencement date. As the lease for the Bothell 200 facility is tied to an
existing lease and was executed in 2023, the Company deemed it appropriate to recognize both the right- of- use asset and lease liability in 2023, with no
amortization of the asset until the lease term begins in February 2024. In August 2024, the Company renewed its lease for the Miami, Florida location for a 36-
month term, starting from October 1, 2024, and ending on September 30, 2027, with an optional two- year extension. At the time of renewal, the Company
classified the lease as an operating lease pursuant to the provisions of ASC 842 and calculated the discounted value of the total lease payments to be
approximately $ 163, 000, using a discount rate of 10. 75 %, and recognized this amount as the lease liability and right- of- use asset at renewal date. The lessor
of the Miami, Florida lease is a limited liability company controlled by Dr. Phillip Frost, a director and a principal stockholder of the Company. See Note 12.
The minimum lease payments above do not include common area maintenance (CAM) charges, which are contractual obligations under the Company’ s Bothell,
Washington lease, but are not fixed and can fluctuate from year to year. CAM charges for the Bothell, Washington facility is calculated and billed based on total
common expenses for the building incurred by the lessor and apportioned to tenants based on square footage. In 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, approximately $ 98-174 , 000
and $ 98, 000 of CAM charges for the Bothell, Washington lease was included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations, respectively. F- 18
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Commitments and Contingencies From time to time, the Company is a party to, or otherwise involved in, legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. As
of the date of this report, except as described below, the Company is not aware of any proceedings, threatened or pending, against it which, if determined adversely,
would have a material effect on its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial position. Liberty Insurance Underwriters Inc. (“ Liberty ) filed suit against us
in federal court in Delaware seeking a declaratory judgment that there was no insurance coverage for any settlement, judgment, or defense costs in the class and
derivative litigation, that the monies totaling approximately $ 1 million it paid to the Company in connection with the SEC investigation were not covered by insurance,
and for recoupment of the monies already paid. We had retained counsel to defend us which had filed an answer to the complaint denying its material allegations, as well
as a counterclaim against Liberty for breach of contract, declaratory judgment, bad faith and violation of the Washington State Consumer Protection Act, alleging among
other things that Liberty wrongfully denied the Company’ s claims for coverage of the class and derivative litigations, and seeking money damages. Liberty Insurance
Underwriters Inc. filed suit against us in federal court in Delaware seeking a declaratory judgment that there was no insurance coverage for any settlement, judgment, or
defense costs in the class and derivative litigation, that the monies totaling approximately $ 1 million it paid to the Company in connection with the SEC investigation
were not covered by insurance, and for recoupment of the monies already paid. On June 7, 2022, the court filed a Stipulation and Order for Entry of Judgment in the
amount of $ 1, 359, 064 in favor of Liberty (the “ Judgment ) following summary judgment granted by the court to Liberty on all but one of the matters at issue in the
case. The Company filed an appeal in July 2022. On March 29, 2023, the Third Circuit ruled in favor of the Company on the appeal, thereby vacating the trial court’ s
prior grant of summary judgment in favor of Liberty. As a result of this ruling, the case has been remanded to the District Court for trial on the merits of the Company’ s
coverage claims for defense and settlement costs. The Court had ordered the return of the $ 1. 6 million. On August 8, 2023, the Company received $ 1. 6 million as
refunded by the registry of the court. On November 16, 2023, prior to commencement of a new trial which had been scheduled for December 4, 2023, the parties
entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to which Liberty paid the Company an additional $ 1 million and each party released the other from its respective claims
and rights arising from the matter. There is no further litigation with Liberty following this settlement. #44-12 . Transactions with Related Parties Ia-September2648-On
August 14, 2024 , the Company entered into a three- year leased-- lease extension with administrative-effiees—fronra limited liability company ewned-controlled by
ene—e-f—éh&@emp&ny—s—Dr. Phillip Frost, a direetors— director and a principal stockholder of s Dr—PhiltipFrost—TFheleaseternris-three-—- the Company years-with-an

. On an annualized basis, straight- line rent expense is inelading-taxesand-fees;forthisleeationweunld-be-approximately $ 62-64 , 000
including fixed and estimable fees and taxes. Upon the extension of the lease, the Company recognized a right- of- use asset of approximately $ 163, 000. The
discount rate used to measure the lease assets and liabilities for the extension was 10. 75 % . The Company paid a lease deposit of $ 4, 000 on the original
agreement and total rent and other expenses paid in connection with this lease were $ 62, 000 and $ 63 5-660-and-$-61+-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-respectively. 45-13 . Segment information The SubseguentEvents-OnFebruary28;2024the-( ompany provided-netice-operates and manages its
business as one reportable and operating segment dedicated to KSURF-efthc research and development Company’ s eleetion-to-terminate-the-Lieense-Agreements
novel orally administered antiviral influenza candidate . The terminations;-whieh-were-made-due-to-measure of segment assets is reported on the balance sheet as
total consolidated assets. In addition, the Company manages the business activities on a consolidated basis. The Company’ s determination-that-farther-CODM
reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis and decides how to allocate resources based on net income (loss). Significant segment expenses
include research and dcvelopment efferts-under, salaries, insurance, and stock- based compensatlon. Operatlng expenses 1nelude all remalmng costs necessary
to operate our business, which primarily include external professional services and the-other g W v
administrative expenses. The following table presents the significant segment expenses and other segment items regularly revnewed by our CODM (table in
thousands): Schedule of Segment Information Year ended December 31 . 2024 2023 Revenue $- $- Less: Research and development 10, 785 13, 492 Salaries
and personnel costs 2, 900 2, 840 Insurance 286 358 Stock- based compensation 643 801 Operating expenses 3, 264 1, 068 Other income (374) (575) Net loss $
(17,504) $ (17, 984) F- 22-19 Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’ s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2023
2024 . Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’ s management, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our
management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. All
internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined effective could provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 , based on the framework in the Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “ 2013 Internal Control- Integrated Framework ). Based on our evaluation under the 2013 Internal




Control- Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Changes in
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) or 15d- 15 (f) under the

Exchange Act that occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information On March 23, 2024, the Company’ s Board approved and adopted an amended Code of Ethics, Insider Trading Policy
and Clawback Policy. The amendments to the Code of Ethics were primarily administrative and technical in nature, with the principal exception being the separation of
the Insider Trading Policy into a separate, new policy for such purpose. The foregoing description does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the
full text of each such of policy, copies of which are fled-incorporated by reference as Exhibits 14. 1, 19. 1 and 97 to this Report. During the three- month period ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , no officer or director has adopted any Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement or any non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement within the meaning of

Item 408 of Regulation S- K promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933. Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections PART 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance. The following is a list of our directors and executive officers. Name Age Position Sam Lee
Co- Chief Executive Officer, President James Martin Co- Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer Roger Kornberg Chairman and Director Phillip
Frost Director Fred Hassan Director Anthony Japour Director Richard C. Pfenniger, Jr. Director Steven Rubin DirectorExecutive Officer and Director
Biographies Sam Lee, Ph. D., Co- Chief Executive Officer, President Dr. Lee has served as our President since January 2, 2014 and as our Co- Chief Executive
Officer since May 2021. From January 2, 2014 to November 22, 2014, Dr. Lee was a director of Cocrystal. He is a co- founder of Cocrystal Discovery and has
been President and a director of Cocrystal Discovery since 2007. He has over 25 years of anti- infective drug discovery research experience. Prior to being a co-
founder of Cocrystal, he managed anti- infective, oncology, and inflammation drug discovery projects for eight years at ICOS Corporation. Dr. Lee was
responsible for incorporating protein crystallography and structural biology approaches into ICOS research. He received his Ph. D. in Biological Sciences
from the University of Notre Dame, and completed postdoctoral training in viral replication biochemistry with Dr. I. R. Lehman at Stanford University. While
at Stanford, Dr. Lee founded and was Chief Executive Officer of Viral Assays in Cupertino, CA. James J. Martin, Co- Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer Mr. Martin has served as our Chief Financial Officer since June 1, 2017 and as our Co- Chief Executive Officer since May 2021. Prior to that, from
February 23, 2017 through May 30, 2017, Mr. Martin served as our Interim Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Martin has also served as Chief Financial Officer of
Non- Invasive Monitoring Systems, Inc. (OTC: NIMU) since January 2011. From November 2020 through December 22, 2021, Mr. Martin served on the
board of directors and as chair of the audit committee of Big Cypress Acquisition Corp (Nasdaq: BCYPU), a biotechnology focused special purpose acquisition
corporation. From February 2017 to November 2020, Mr. Martin served as Chief Financial Officer of Motus GI Holdings, Inc. (Nasdaq: MOTS), a medical
device company. From September 2014 to November 2020, Mr. Martin served as Chief Financial Officer of VBI Vaccines Inc. (formerly SciVac Therapeutics,
Inc.) (Nasdaq: VBIV), a pharmaceutical development and manufacturing company. Mr. Martin also served as a director of SAB Biotherapeutics, Inc. from
November 2020 to October 22, 2021. Roger Kornberg, Chairman of the Board of Directors Dr. Kornberg has been a director of Cocrystal since April 15, 2020.
Since 1988, Dr. Kornberg has been a professor of structural biology at Stanford Medical School. Dr. Kornberg is a member of the U. S. National Academy of
Sciences and the Winzer Professor of Medicine in the Department of Structural Biology at Stanford University. In 2006, Dr. Kornberg was awarded the Nobel
Prize in Chemistry in recognition for his studies of the molecular basis of Eukaryotic Transcription, the process by which DNA is copied to RNA. Dr.
Kornberg is also the recipient of several awards, including the 2001 Welch Prize, the highest award granted in the field of chemistry in the United States, and
the 2002 Leopold Mayer Prize, the highest award granted in the field of biomedical sciences from the French Academy of Sciences. Dr. Kornberg has served as
a member of the Board of Directors of Xenetic Biosciences, Inc. (Nasdaq: XBIO) since February 2016. Dr. Kornberg’ s prior experience serving on the boards
of directors of large organizations as well as his tremendous scientific background provides him with the appropriate set of skills to serve as a member of our
Board. Phillip Frost, M. D., Director Dr. Frost has been a director of Cocrystal since January 2, 2014 and formerly a director of Cocrystal Discovery, Inc., our
subsidiary, from 2008 to 2014. He has served as CEO and Chairman of OPKO Health, Inc. (Nasdaq: OPK) (“ OPKO ), a multi- national pharmaceutical and
diagnostics company since March 2007. He has served as a member of the Board of Trustees of the University of Miami since 1983 and was Chairman from
2001 to 2004. He is on the Advisory Board of the Shanghai Institute for Advanced Immunochemical Studies in China, a member of The Florida Council of 100
and is a Trustee of each of the Miami Jewish Home for the Aged and the Mount Sinai Medical Center. He serves as Chairman of Temple Emanu- El, Governor
of Tel Aviv University and is a member of the Executive Committee of The Phillip and Patricia Frost Museum of Science. Dr. Frost served as a director of
Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services Inc. from 2004 to 2006 and as Chairman from July 2006 until September 2018. He previously served as an Expert
Member of the Scientific Advisory Council of the Skolkovo Foundation in Russia. Dr. Frost previously served as Vice Chairman of Cogint, Inc., now known as
Fluent, Inc. (Nasdaq: FLNT), and as a director for Castle Brands Inc. (NYSE American: ROX). He served as Vice- Chair of TEVA and then Chair from 2006
— 2012 after its purchase of IVAX Pharmaceuticals which Dr. Frost founded and where he served as Chairman and CEO. Dr. Frost has successfully founded
several pharmaceutical companies and overseen the development and commercialization of a multitude of pharmaceutical products. This combined with his
experience as a physician and chairman and / or chief executive officer of large pharmaceutical companies has given him insight into virtually every facet of
the pharmaceutical business and drug development and commercialization process. He is a demonstrated leader with keen business understanding and is
uniquely positioned to help guide our Company. Fred Hassan, Director Mr. Hassan has been a director of Cocrystal since April 2023. Mr. Hassan joined
Warburg Pincus LLC, a global private equity firm, in 2010 and currently serves as an advisor with the title of Director. Previously, Mr. Hassan served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Schering- Plough from 2003 to 2009. Before assuming these roles, from 2001 to 2003, Mr. Hassan was Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Pharmacia Corporation, a company formed as a result of the merger of Monsanto Company and Pharmacia & Upjohn, Inc. He
joined Pharmacia & Upjohn, Inc. as Chief Executive Officer in 1997. Mr. Hassan previously held leadership positions with Wyeth serving as Executive Vice
President, and was a member of the board from 1995 to 1997. Earlier in his career, he spent a significant tenure with Sandoz Pharmaceuticals and headed the
company’ s U. S. pharmaceuticals business. Mr. Hassan has been a director of EyePoint Pharmaceuticals since September 2024, Precigen Inc. (Nasdaq:
PGEN) since June 2016, BridgeBio Pharma, Inc. (Nasdaq: BBIO) since August 2021 and was a director of Prometheus Biosciences, Inc. (Nasdaq: RXDX) from
May 2021 to June 2023. Mr. Hassan served as a director of Time Warner Inc. from October 2009 to June 2018 and a director of Amgen, Inc. (Nasdaq: AMGN)
from July 2015 to May 2021. In the course of his career, he has held numerous other directorships, including those at Avon Products, Inc. from 1999 to 2013,
Bausch & Lomb from 2010 until its acquisition by Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, Inc. (NYSE: VRX) (“ Valeant ”) in 2013, and Valeant from 2013 to
2014. Mr. Hassan has chaired notable pharmaceutical industry organizations including The Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America
(PhRMA) and The International Federation of Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Associations (IFPMA). Mr. Hassan received a B. S. degree in chemical
engineering from the Imperial College of Science and Technology at the University of London and an M. B. A. from Harvard Business School. Mr. Hassan’ s
qualifications to serve on our Board include his strong leadership and management experience with global pharmaceutical companies, including significant
knowledge of strategy, operations, government relations, regulatory, finance and investments, and mergers and acquisitions, as well as his experience as a
director on companies in our industry and larger companies. Anthony Japour, M. D., Director Dr. Japour has been a director of Cocrystal since April 4, 2019.
Since June 2021, Dr. Japour has been the Chief Executive Officer and President of iTolerance, Inc. From April 2021 to October 2022, Dr. Japour has served
on the board of directors of Sanaby Health Acquisition Corp. I. (Nasdaq: SANB). From February 2016 through May 2020, Dr. Japour was a medical director
at ICON Plc, a global provider of outsourced development services to the pharmaceutical, biotechnology and medical device industries. Additionally, since
November 2006, Dr. Japour has been the principal of Anthony Japour & Associates, Medical and Scientific Consulting, Inc., a consulting company. From
January 6, 2020 until June 2020, Dr. Japour served as a director of OPKO. Dr. Japour was designated by Dr. Raymond Schinazi, our principal stockholder,
pursuant to the Stockholder Rights Agreement, dated November 24, 2014. Dr. Japour’ s qualifications to serve on our Board include his over 25 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology businesses. Additionally, Dr. Japour has extensive experience in the clinical trial process. Richard C.
Pfenniger, Jr., Director Mr. Pfenniger has been a director of Cocrystal since May 27, 2021. Mr. Pfenniger is a private investor. During his career, Mr.
Pfenniger has served as an executive officer of several companies, including as Chief Executive Officer and President of Continucare Corporation, a provider
of primary care physician and practice management services, form 2003 until 2011, where he also served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Continucare Corporation from 2002 to 2011. Previously, Mr. Pfenniger served as the Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of Whitman Education
Group, Inc. from 1997 through June 2003. Prior to joining Whitman, he served as the Chief Operating Officer of IVAX from 1994 to 1997, and, from 1989 to
1994, he served as the Senior Vice President- Legal Affairs and General Counsel of IVAX Corporation. Prior thereto he was engaged in the private practice of
law. Mr. Pfenniger has been a director of OPKO Health, Inc. since January 2008, a multi- national pharmaceutical and diagnostics company. Since April
2022, Mr. Pfenniger has served as a director of GeneDX Holdings Corp. (Nasdaq: WGS), a medical diagnostics company. Since October 2022, Mr. Pfenniger
has served as a director of Fluent, Inc. (Nasdaq: FLNT), a data driven marketing performance company. Mr. Pfenniger served as a director of GP Strategies
Corp (NYSE: GPX) from 2005 to 2021, as a director of BioCardia, Inc. (Nasdaq: BCDA) from 2016 to January 2020, and as a director of Asensus Surgical,
Inc. (NYSE American: ASXC), a medical device company, from 2005 to 2024. Mr. Pfenniger also serves as the Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees and as



a member of the Executive Committee of the Phillip and Patricia Frost Museum of Science. Mr. Pfenniger’ s prior experience serving on the boards of
directors as well as his legal experience and knowledge of our business and the pharmaceutical industry provides him with the appropriate set of skills to serve
as a member of our Board. Steven D. Rubin, Director Mr. Rubin has been a director of Cocrystal since January 2, 2014 and a director of Cocrystal Discovery
since 2008. Mr. Rubin has served as Executive Vice President — Administration of OPKO Health, Inc. (Nasdaq: OPK) since May 2007 and as a director of the
OPKO since February 2007. Mr. Rubin currently serves on the board of directors of Red Violet, Inc. (Nasdaq: RDVT), a software and services company,
Eloxx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (OTC: ELOX), a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company engaged in the science of ribosome modulation, and ChromaDex
Corp. (Nasdaq: CDXC), a science- based, integrated nutraceutical company devoted to improving the way people age. Mr. Rubin previously served as a
director of Neovasc, Inc. (NASDAQ: NVCN), a company that developed and marketed medical specialty vascular devices, and Non- Invasive Monitoring
Systems, Inc. (OTC: NIMU), a medical device company. Mr. Rubin’ s qualifications to serve on our Board include extensive leadership, business, and legal
experience, as well as tremendous knowledge of our business and the pharmaceutical industry generally. He has advised pharmaceutical companies in several
aspects of business, regulatory, transactional, and legal affairs for almost 30 years. His experience as a practicing lawyer, general counsel, and board member
to multiple public companies, including several pharmaceutical and life sciences companies, has given him broad understanding and expertise, particularly
relating to strategic planning and acquisitions. Family Relationships There are no family relationships among our directors and executive officers. Director
Independence Our Board, exercising its reasonable business judgment, has determined that each of Cocrystal’ s directors qualifies as an independent director
pursuant to Rule 5605 (a) (2) of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“ Nasdaq ”) listing rules (the “ Nasdaq Rules ) and applicable SEC rules and regulations.
Stockholder Nomination Procedures Since the Company’ s last proxy statement, there have been no material changes to the procedures by which stockholders
may recommend nominees to our Board of Directors. Delinquent Section 16 (a) Reports Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive
officers, and persons who own more than 10 % of our common stock to file initial reports of ownership and changes in ownership of our common stock and
other equity securities with the SEC. These individuals are required by the regulations of the SEC to furnish us with copies of all Section 16 (a) forms they file.
Based solely on a review of the copies of the forms furnished to us, and written representations from reporting persons that no Forms 5 were required to
report delinquent filings, we believe that all filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and 10 % beneficial owners were complied with during
2024. Audit Committee The Company has a standing Audit Committee consisting of three directors: Phillip Frost, Anthony Japour, and Steven Rubin. The
Audit Committee’ s primary role is to review our accounting policies and financial reporting and disclosure processes and any issues which may arise in the
course of the audit of our financial statements. The Audit Committee selects our independent registered public accounting firm, approves all audit and non-
audit services, and reviews the independence of our independent registered public accounting firm, and reviews the Company’ s annual and quarterly
financial statements and related disclosure with our independent registered public accounting firm and management. The Audit Committee also reviews the
audit and non- audit fees of the auditors. Our Audit Committee is also responsible for certain corporate governance and legal compliance matters including
internal and disclosure controls and compliance with the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. In addition, pursuant to its charter, the Audit Committee annually (i)
reviews the Company’ s financial reporting practices, critical accounting policies, and estimates; (ii) reviews significant financial risks and exposures and

the steps manag t has taken to monitor such risks and exposures; (iii) reviews issues regarding the Company’ s accounting principles, including
any significant changes in the Company’ s selection or application of accounting principles, and the Company’ s financial statement presentation; (iv) reviews
issues as to the adequacy of the Company’ s internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and (v) reviews management’ s attitude
toward, and effectiveness in establishing, internal controls, and the efficiency of the process used to establish, monitor, and evaluate internal control systems.
Our Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee meets the enhanced independence requirements to audit committee members under
Rule 5605 (c) (2) of Nasdaq Rules and under Rule 10A- 3 under the Exchange Act. The Board has also determined that Steven Rubin is qualified as an Audit
Committee Financial Expert, as that term is defined by Item 407 (d) (5) (ii) of Regulation S- K and in compliance with the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.
Compensation Committee The function of the Compensation Committee is to determine the compensation of our executive officers. The Compensation
Committee has the power to set performance targets for determining periodic bonuses payable to executive officers and may review and make
recommendations with respect to stockholder proposals related to compensation matters. Additionally, the Compensation Committee is responsible for
administering our equity compensation plans including the Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. 2015 Equity Incentive Plan. The Compensation Committee may delegate
any or all of its duties or responsibilities to a subcommittee, to the extent consistent with the Company’ s Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, applicable laws
and the Nasdaq Rules. The Board has determined that each member of the Compensation Committee meets the independence requirements under Rule 5605
(a) of Nasdaq Rules and Rule 10C- 1 under the Exchange Act. The Compensation Committee is comprised of two members. Corporate Governance and
Nominating C ittee The responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee include the identification of individuals qualified to
become Board members, the selection of nominees to stand for election as directors, the oversight of the selection and composition of committees of the Board,
the establishment of procedures for the nomination process including procedures and the oversight of the evaluations of the Board and management. Under its
charter, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee also monitors and enforces the Company’ s related party transaction policy as set forth in the
Bylaws, and conducts an annual review of any known relationships between or among all entities which file reports with the SEC that are affiliated with any
Company officer or director to determine if there are any coordinated groups that are required to be reported as such in filings with the SEC. The Board has
determined that each member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee meets the independence requirements under Rule 5605 (a) (2) of
Nasdaq Rules. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is comprised of three members. The Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee evaluates the suitability of potential candidates recommended by stockholders in the same manner as other candidates recommended to the
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. If we receive any stockholder recommended nominations, the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee will carefully review the recommendation (s) and consider such recommendation (s) in good faith. Stockholders who wish to recommend candidates
for election to the Board must do so in writing. The recommendation should be sent to the Secretary of Cocrystal Pharma, Inc., at 4400 Biscayne Boulevard,
Miami, FL 33137, and must be in accordance with our Bylaws with respect to nomination of persons for election to the Board. Code of Ethics Our Board has
adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our Co- Chief Executive Officers, as well as our Board. The Code of Ethics provides
written standards that we believe are reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of
actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships, full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure and
compliance with laws, rules and regulations, including insider trading, corporate opportunities and whistle- blowing or the prompt reporting of illegal or
unethical behavior. A copy of our Code of Ethics is available through the “ Investors ” section on our website, which can be found at www. cocrystalpharma.
com, and is also filed as Exhibit 14. 1 of this Report. The information on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated herein. In addition,
we will provide a copy of the Code of Ethics to any person without charge, upon request. The request for a copy can be made in writing by contacting our
Corporate Secretary jmartin @ cocrystalpharma. com. Insider Trading Policy The Company has implemented an Insider Trading Policy applicable to its
officers and directors and employees with access to material nonpublic information, as well as such persons’ family members, which generally prohibits such
persons from conducting transactions involving the purchase or sale of the Company’ s securities during a blackout period. For this purpose, the term
blackout period ” is defined in the Policy as a quarterly period beginning on the 10th calendar day of the last month of each fiscal quarter, and ending one day
following the date of public disclosure of the financial results for such fiscal quarter. In addition, under the Policy the Company may adjust the duration of a
particular blackout period, or impose “ event specific ” blackout periods, including when there are nonpublic developments that would be considered material
for insider trading law purposes. The Policy also strictly prohibits and trading on material nonpublic information, regardless of whether such a transaction
occurs during a blackout period. While the granting of options and other equity awards to officers, directors and other employees is not expressly addressed in
the Insider Trading Policy described above, the Company follows the same principles set forth in such Policy when granting equity awards, including options,
to its officers, directors and other employees with access to material nonpublic information. Generally the Board or Compensation Committee does not
approve grants of such awards during a blackout period, and does not take material nonpublic information into account when determining the timing and
terms of such an award. Further, the Company does not have a policy or practice of timing the disclosure of material nonpublic information for the purpose of
affecting the value of executive compensation. Anti- Hedging Policy Under the Company’ s Insider Trading Policy, all officers, directors and certain identified
employees are prohibited from engaging in hedging transactions. Clawback Policy The Company has implemented a clawback policy in accordance with the
rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC, to recoup “ excess ” incentive compensation, if any, earned by current and former executive officers during a three
year look back period in the event of a financial restatement due to material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws
(with no fault required ). Item 11. Executive Compensation. The following information is related to the compensation paid to, earned by fem+6-or accrued with
respect to ( Direetors-i) each Co- Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) during the fiscal year ended December 31 . 2024, (ii) the two most highly
compensated executive officers other than the Co- Chief Exccutive Officers whose total compensation exceeded $ 100, 000, and (iii) up to two additional




individuals who would qualify under (ii) above but for the fact that such individuals were not serving as executive officers of the Company as of December 31,
2024. We refer to these persons as the “ Named Executive Officers. ” Summary Compensation TableName and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)
(1) Stock Awards ($) (2) Option Awards ($) (3) Non- equity incentive plan compensation ($) Non- qualified deferred compensation earnings ($) All other
compensation ($) Total ($) James Martin 2024 410, 459 200, 000 70, 400 680, 859 Co- Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 2023 394, 821 165,
000 67, 380 627, 201 Sam Lee 2024 410, 459 200, 000 70, 400 680, 859 Co- Chief Executive Officer and President 2023 394, 821 165, 000 67, 380 627, 201 (1)
Represents cash bonuses paid or accrued during the fiscal year covered. (2) Represents RSUs. Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value computed in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating the amounts are discussed in Note 7 of the Company’ s audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, included in this Report. (3) Represents options to purchase common stock. Reflects the aggregate grant date
fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating the amounts are discussed in Note 7 of the Company’ s
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, included in this Report. Named Executive Officers’ Employment Agreements James
Martin. The Company entered into a letter agreement with Mr. Martin effective June 1, 2017. Following a base salary increase in June 1, 2024, Mr. Martin
received and-- an annual base salary of $ 416, 000, which is subject to annual review. Effective January 1, 2025, his base annual salary was reduced to $ 250,
000. In addition to the base salary, Mr. Martin is eligible to receive a discretionary bonus, to the extent approved by the Board. Sam Lee. The Company has
entered into an employment agreement with Sam Lee, the Company’ s President effective January 2, 2014. Pursuant to the terms of his employment
agreement, Dr. Lee’ s employment is on an at- will basis and may be terminated by either party. Dr. Lee received an annual base salary of $ 416, 000,
following a base salary increase in June 1, 2024. Effective January 1, 2025, his base annual salary was reduced to $ 250, 000. In addition to the base salary, Mr.
Lee is eligible to receive a discretionary bonus, to the extent approved by the Board. Termination Provisions Pursuant to Dr. Lee’ s Employment Agreement,
as amended, in the event he terminates his employment for Good Reason, or the Company terminates his employment without Cause, he will be entitled,
subject to execution and effectiveness of a general release, to receive (i) six months of his then annual base salary, (ii) continued COBRA coverage until the
earlier of 12 months, the availability of replacement coverage from another employer, and the date on which such continued coverage is no longer available to
him for any reason, and (iii) a lump sum payment of a prorated portion of his performance bonus for the year in which his employment was terminated.
Further, if Dr. Lee terminates his employment for Good Reason, or the Company terminates his employment without Cause, within 24 months of a Change of
Control (as defined in the 2015 Plan), he will receive 18 months of his annual base salary and COBRA coverage rather than the timeframes provided under (i)
and (ii) above, and a full year’ s target bonus rather than a prorated target bonus under (iii) above. Pursuant to Dr. Lee’ s Employment Agreement, Good
Reason is defined as: (i) any material reduction by the Company of his salary or target bonus, (i) any material diminution in his duties, title, responsibilities
or authoritys; (iii) a requirement that he report to a Corperate-corporate Governanee-officer or employee instead of reporting directly to the Board (other than
following a Change of Control ) ; (iv) any material breach of his Employment Agreement; (v) a requirement that he relocate to a principal place of
employment more than 40 miles from a specified address in Santa Barbara . #tem-California; or (vi) the Company’ s removal or failure to appoint Dr. Lee as a
member of the Board (other than following a Change of Control). Cause is defined as any of the following by Dr. Lee: (i) commission of an act of fraud,
embezzlement or theft against the Companys; (ii) conviction of, or a plea of no contest to, a felonys; (iii) willful non- performance of his material duties as an
employee of the Company without cure; (iv) material breach of his Employment Agreement or any other material agreement between Dr. Lee and the
Company without cure; or (v) gross negligence, willful misconduct or any other act of willful disregard for the Company’ s best interests without cure.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year- End Listed below is information with respect to unvested stock awards and unexercisable and unexercised options
for each Named Executive Officer outstanding as of December 31, 2024: Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year- EndName Number of shares or units of
stock that have not vested (#) Market value of shares or units of stock that have not vested ($) Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#)
Exercisable Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable Option Exercise Price ($) Option Expiration Date James Martin 12, 500-
33.369/20/2028 12, 500-15. 96 6 / 22 / 2030 20, 834-13.32 7 /16 /2031 21, 875 3,126 (1) 5. 04 7/25 /2032 18,750 11,250 (2) 2. 67 7 /18 /2033 20, 000 (3) $
40, 400 (4) Sam Lee 8, 334-33.369/20/2028 8, 334-15.96 6 /22 /2030 4, 167- 15. 60 11 / 24 / 2030 20, 834- 13.32 7 /16 /2031 21, 875 3,126 (1) 5.04 7 /25 /
2032 18,750 11, 250 (2) 2. 67 7 /18 /2033 20, 000 (3) $ 40, 400 (4) (1) Represents 10- year incentive stock options vesting in eight equal quarterly increments
with the first such quarterly increment vesting on September 30, 2023, subject to continued employment on each applicable vesting date. (2) Represents 10-
year incentive stock options vesting as follows: one- half vested on July 18, 2024 and the remainder will vest in eight equal quarterly increments with the first
such quarterly increment vesting on September 30, 2024, subject to continued employment on each applicable vesting date. (3) Represents RSUs vesting in
eight equal quarterly increments with the first such quarterly increment vesting on September 30, 2025, subject to continued employment on each applicable
vesting date. Does not include 20, 000 RSUs which vested in 2024. (4) Represents the market value of the RSUs referred to above, calculated based on $ 2. 02,
the closing price of the Company’ s common stock as of December 31, 2024. DIRECTOR COMPENSATION Compensation of Directors In the year ended
December 31, 2024, non- employee directors were compensated for as follows: Name * Fees Earned or Paid in Cash ($) 1) Stock Awards ($) (2) All Other
Compensation ($) Total ($) Phillip Frost 44, 770 47, 696- 92, 466 Fred Hassan 36, 300 14, 198 50, 498 Anthony Japour 54, 450 26, 266- 80, 716, Roger Kornberg
60, 500 49, 472 100, 000 (3) 209, 972 Steven Rubin 82, 280 33, 364- 115, 644 Richard C. Pfenniger, Jr. 36, 300 14, 198- 50, 498 (1) Represents cash fees paid,
accrued or earned for serving as directors and in Board committee roles. (2) Represents RSUs. Amounts reported represent the aggregate grant date fair value
of awards granted without regard to forfeitures granted to the independent directors during 2024, computed in accordance with ASC 718. This amount does
not reflect the actual economic value realized by the directors. (3) Represents $ 100, 000 compensation paid to Dr. Kornberg for serving as chairman of the
Company’ s Scientific Advisory Board. The table below sets forth the unvested RSUs and unexercised stock options held by each of our non- employee
directors outstanding as of December 31, 2024. Name Aggregate Number of Unvested Stock Awards Outstanding at December 31, 2024 Aggregate Number of
Unexercised Option Awards Outstanding at December 31, 2023 Phillip Frost 27, 100 52, 391 Fred Hassan 8, 067 7, 333 Anthony Japour 14, 924 36, 737 Roger
Kornberg 28, 109 69, 835 Steven Rubin 18, 957 51, 374 Richard C. Pfenniger, Jr. 8, 067 18, 167 Compensation Policies and Practices as Related to Risk
Manag; t The Comp tion Committee and management do not believe that the Company maintains compensation policies or practices that are
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. Our employees’ base salaries are fixed in amount and thus we do not believe that they
encourage excessive risk- taking. Our Compensation Committee has in the past granted and may in the future grant in its sole discretion equity awards to
employees. The principal risks other than liquidity relate to the results of our research and development activities. Our Co- Chief Executive Officer
Compensation)-, Dr. Sam Lee, is actively involved in monitoring our research and development activities and our clinical trial program. ltcin 12 €. Sccurity
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters . Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
The following table sets forth the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned as of the record date by (i ) those persons known by us to be
owners of more than 5 % of our common stock . ften(ii) each director and director nominee, (iii) each of our Named Executive Officers and (iv) all current
executive officers and directors of Cocrystal as a group. Unless otherwise specified in the notes to this table, the address for each person is: ¢ / 0 Cocrystal
Pharma, Inc., 19805 North Creek Parkway, Bothell, WA. Beneficial Owner Amount of Common Stock Beneficially Owned and Nature of Beneficial Owner (1)
Percent of Class (1) Directors and Named Executive Officers: James Martin (2) 107, 029 1. 04 % Sam Lee (3) 138, 650 1. 35 % Phillip Frost (4) 1, 376, 237 13
45 % Fred Hassan ( 5) 1 CertainRelationships-and-Related-TFransaetions-, and-023, 845 9. 98 % Anthony Japour (6) 37, 567 * Roger Kornberg (7) 111, 584 1. 09
% Richard Pfenniger (8) 21, 949 * Steven Rubin (9) 54, 385 * All Direetor-directors ndependenee);-and Htenrexecutive officers as a group (8 persons) (10): 2,
871,247 28. 14 % 5 % Holders Raymond Schinazi ( 11 Prineipal-Aecounting Fees-and-Serviees-) 638, 322 6. 27 % Sue Wilcox (12) 564, 952 5. 55 % * Less than
1 %. (1) Applicable percentages are based on 10, 173, 790 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2025, which is ineerporated-the record date for
the Annual Meeting. Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to
securities. Shares of common stock underlying options, warrants, and preferred stock currently exercisable or convertible within 60 days are deemed
outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the person holding such securities but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of
any other person. The table includes shares of common stock, options, and warrants exercisable or convertible into common stock and vested or vesting within
60 days. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes to this table, we believe that each of the stockholders named in the table has sole voting and investment
power with respect to the shares of common stock indicated as beneficially owned by referenee-them. (2) Mr. Martin is a Named Executive Officer. Includes 86,
460 vested stock options and 20, 000 shares underlying vested RSUs. Address is 4400 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. (3) Dr. Lee is a Named Executive
Officer. Includes 82, 295 vested stock options and 20, 000 shares underlying vested RSUs. (4) Dr. Frost is a director. Includes (i) 1, 319, 838 shares of common
stock held by Frost Gamma Investments Trust, (ii) 42, 849 vested stock options and (ii) 13, 550 shares underlying vested RSUs. Dr. Frost is the trustee of Frost
Gamma Investments Trust. Frost Gamma L. P. is the sole and exclusive beneficiary of Frost Gamma Investments Trust. Dr. Frost is one of to-two limited
partners of Frost Gamma L. P. The general partner of Frost Gamma L. P. is Frost Gamma, Inc., and the sole stockholder of Frost Gamma, Inc. is Frost-
Nevada Corporation. Dr. Frost is the sole stockholder of Frost- Nevada Corporation. Does not include securities held by OPKO, a corporation of which Dr.




Frost is the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, concerning the securities of which Dr. Frost does not hold voting and investment control. Dr. Frost
disclaims beneficial ownership of the securities held by Frost Gamma Investments Trust and OPKO except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein.
Address is 4400 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. Information is based on a Schedule 13D / A filed by Dr. Frost and Frost Gamma Investments Trust on
April 14, 2023. (5) Mr. Hassan is a director. Includes 4, 583 vested stock options and 4, 033 shares underlying vested RSUs. Address is 4400 Biscayne
Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. (6) Dr. Japour is a director. Includes 30, 105 vested stock options and 7, 462 shares underlying vested RSUs. Address is 4400
Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. (7) Dr. Kornberg is a director. Includes (i) 39, 769 shares of common stock held by a trust of which Dr. Kornberg is the
trustee, (ii) 57, 761 vested stock options and (iii) 14, 054 shares underlying vested RSUs. (8) Mr. Pfenniger is a director. Includes 14, 583 vested stock options
and 4, 033 shares underlying vested RSUs. Address is 4400 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. (9) Mr. Rubin is a director. Includes 42, 952 vested stock
options and 9, 478 shares underlying vested RSUs. Address is 4400 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. (10) Directors and Executive Officers as a group.
This amount includes ownership by all directors and all current executive officers including Named Executive Officers and those who are not Named
Executive Officers under the SEC’ s disclosure rules. (11) Dr. Schinazi is our former Chalrman Address is 1860 Montreal Road, Tucker, GA 30084. Includes
1, 259 vested stock options. (12) Mrs. Wilcox is the wife of Gary Wilcox, the Company’ s definitive-proxy-statementformer Chief Executive Officer’ s wife.
Address is 4400 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, FL 33137. Equity Compensation Plan Information The following chart reflects the number of securities granted
under equlty compensatlon plans approved and not approved by stockholders and the weighted average exercise price for such plans as the2024-Annuat

v days-of December 31, 2024. Name Of Plan Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of outstandmg options and stock awards (1) Welghted average exercise price of outstanding options and stock awards ($) Number of
securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (1) Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 806, 654 10. 57 26, 679 Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders--- Total 806, 654 26, 679 Item 13. Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Other than
as disclosed below and the compensation arrangements described in this Amendment under “ Executive Compensation, ” there have been no transactions
since January 1, 2023 , involving the Company, in which the amount exceeded $ 120, 000, and in which any of our directors, executive officers, beneficial
owners of 5 % or more of our common stock or certain other related persons had a direct or indirect material interest, and there are no such currently
proposed transactions. On August 14, 2024, the Company entered into a three- year lease extension with a limited liability company controlled by Dr. Phillip
Frost, a director and a principal stockholder of the Company. The Company paid a lease deposit of $ 4, 000 on the original agreement and total rent and other
expenses paid in connection with this lease were $ 62, 000 and $ 63, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. On April 4, 2023, the
Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors including Frost Gamma Investments Trust, a trust in which Phillip
Frost, M. D., a director of the Company, is the trustee whereby each purchaser purchased 1, 015, 229 shares of common stock at a price of $ 1. 97 per share, or
two equal $ 2, 000, 000 investments. The second purchaser was Fred Hassan, who several weeks later was appointed a director of the Company. The purchase
price complied with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635. Related Party Transaction Policy Our Bylaws provide for policies and procedures for the review, approval,
or ratification of transactions with related parties. These Bylaw provisions include: (i) a requirement that all directors and executive officers submit to the
Board an up- to- date list of companies in which they are a director, an officer, and / or of which they own a controlling interest, and promptly update the list
when any changes occur; (ii) the implementation by the Chief Financial Officer of procedures to ensure that any material transaction that the Company is
contemplating that would confer a monetary or other benefit to a party that is related to the Company or its officers will promptly be disclosed to the Board,
with materiality and a party’ s status as related to the Company or its officers determined based on Item 404 (a) of Regulation S- K under the Exchange Act;
and (iii) a requirement that a majority of the Board approve or ratify any related- party transaction, and that timely disclosures in appropriate filings with the
SEC are made of all material related party transactions. The Bylaws provide that in making their determination, the directors shall consider the business
purpose of any proposed related- party transaction, whether the proposed transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to
unaffiliated third parties under the same or similar circumstances, and whether the proposed transaction presents an improper conflict of interest for any
officer or director of the Company, whether or not that officer or director is involved in the transaction. The Board may approve or ratify such transactions if
it determines, after review, that they are fair to the Company and not inconsistent with the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. Any director
who is interested in such a related- party transaction will be recused from any consideration of such related party transaction. In addition, the charter of the
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee provides that the Committee will coordinate with the Chief Financial Officer to monitor and enforce the
Company’ s related party transaction policy, and report its findings to the Board. See “ Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance — Director
Independence > for disclosure regarding director independence. Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. Audit Committee’ s Pre- Approval Policies
and Procedures Our Audit Committee reviews and approves audit and permissible non- audit services performed by our independent registered public
accounting firm (the “ Principal Accountant ), as well as the fees charged for such services. In its review of non- audit service and its appointment of our
independent registered public accounting firm, the Audit Committee considers and considered whether the provision of such services was compatible with
maintaining independence. All of the services provided and fees charged by our Principal Accountant in 2024 and 2023 were approved by the Audit
Committee in accordance with its pre- approval policy. Principal Accountant Fees and Services The following table shows the fees billed by our Principal
Accountant for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 2024 ($) 2023 ($) Audit Fees (1) 126, 000 130, 000 Audit- Related Fees (2)-- Total 126, 000 130,
000 (1) Audit Fees relate to the audits of our 1 financial stat ts and the review of our interim quarterly financial statements. (2) Audit- Related fees
relate to the assessment of our internal controls . PART IV Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules (1) Financial Statements: See Part I1, Item 8 of this
report. (2) Exhibits: See Index to Exhibits below. EXHIBIT BNDEXExhibit INDEX Incorporated by Reference Filed or Furnished Exhibit No. L\lnbll Description
Form Date Number Herewith 3. 1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended 10- Q $-11 /+6-13 / 24
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Incentive Plan * DEF 14A 6/ 1 13 Annex A 10. 1 (a) Amendment to 2015 Equity Inunllu Plan * DEF 14, \ 4 n() 19 Annex A\ 1(). 1 (b) Amendment to 2015 Equity
Incentive Plan * DEF14A 4 /26 /2021 Annex B 10. 2 Sam Lee Employment Agreement * 8-K 1/8/14 10 2 (a) Amendment to Sam Lee Employment
Agreement * 10- K 3/31/15 10. 6 10. 3 James Martin Consulting Agreement * 8- K 2 /24 /17 10. 1 10. 4 ( lmt l-manual Officer Offer Lgllu dalul \h\ 26,2017-
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C. Wainwright & Co., LLC * * 8-K 5/5/21 1.1 10. 16 Consulting and Scientific Advisory Board Agreement, dated April 13, 2021 with Roger Kornberg 10- Q 8/ 16
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10-K 3/27/2021.123. 1 Consent of Weinberg & Company Filed 31. 1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer (302) Filed 31. 2 Certification of Principal
Executive Officer (302) Filed 31. 3 Certification of Principal Financial Officer (302) Filed 32. 1 (906) Furnished Clawback policy FHed-10- K 3 /28 /24 101. INS
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any filing, in aumddnu with Item ()()] 01 Ruml.\lum S- K. Copies of this report (including the financial statements) and any of the exhibits referred to above will be
furnished at no cost to our stockholders who make a written request to our Corporate Secretary at Cocrystal Pharma, Inc., 19805 N. Creek Parkway Bothell, WA 98011.
Item 16. Form 10- K Summary SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. COCRYSTAL PHARMA, INC. March 28-31 , 2624-2025 By: / s / James
Martin James Martin Co- fatesi-Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. SIGNATURE TITLE DATE /s / Roger



Kornberg Chairman March 28-31 , 2624-2025 Roger Kornberg / s / Phillip Frost Director March 28-31 , 2624-2025 Phillip Frost / s / Fred Hassan Director March 28-31 ,
2024-2025 Fred Hassan /s / Anthony Japour Director March 31, 2025 Anthony Japour /s/ Rlchard Pfenmger Dlrector March 31 2025 Rlchard Pfenmger
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23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm BetheH;-Washingtor-We kereby-consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration
Statements on Form S- 3 (No. 333- 231022 and No. 333- 237738) and on Form S- 8 (No. 333- 193161 and No. 333- 224869) of Ceerystal-Pharma;tre—efour report
dated of March 28-31 , 2024-2025 | relating to the consolidated financial statements of Cocrystal Pharma . Inc. ( which appears-report includes an explanatory
paragraph relating to substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern) included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year
ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We also consent to the reference to our firm under the heading “ Experts ” in
such Registration Statements and related Prospectuses . / s / Weinberg & Company . P. A. Los Angeles, California March 28-31 , 2624-2025 Exhibit 31. 1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER I, James Martin, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of Cocrystal Pharma,
Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my
knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control
over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s other
certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal
control over financial reporting. Date: March 28-31 , 2824-2025 / s / James Martin James Martin Co- Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Exhibit 31. 2
I, Sam Lee, certify that: / s / Sam Lee Sam Lee Co- Chief Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 3 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER /s / James
Martin James Martin Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the report of Cocrystal Pharma, Inc. (the “ Company ™)
on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, James Martin, certify,
pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge: 1. The report fully complies with the
requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 2. The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. / s / James Martin James Martin Chief Financial Officer and Co- Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal Executive Officer) Dated: March 28-31 , 2624-2025 / s / Sam Lee Sam Lee Co- Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
Dated: March 282624 bt A BA ’ Pha —{the* 2y adeptsthis awbackPoheytnaceorda Wit e -4
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